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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

We have pudited the consolideted (nencial stalements of Guurdian Holdings Limated and ity subsidiaries ("the Group™) which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial pusition uws o1 31 December 2011 ond the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flaws for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explinatory nodes,

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management ig responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated fnencial $lalements in secordunce with Internutional
Financial Reporting Standards and for suwch internal control &s mumagement delenmimes 13 necessary (o cnable the preperation of consolidated financial
statesents that are free from malerial missttements, whether due to fruud or ermor.

Autitors' Responsibility

Cur responsibilily 15 Lo express an opinion on these conzolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Intermational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
teazonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free fom malerial misstalernent.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audil evidence aboul the amounts end disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the ssscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk asscssments, the auditor considers internal contral relevant to the entity's preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated finuncial statements in order to design nudit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing m opinion on the effectivencss of the entity’s internal contral. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
pecounting policies used and the reasonoblencss of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consoliduled [munonl statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our audit opinion,
Opinion

In our opmicn, the consolidated financial staements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as al 31 December 2011, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Finuneial Reporting Standards.

=P _
Puﬂ:::um 4-@““7

TRINIDAD:
23 March 2012

A mirdan T of Eonil B Younsg Diobal Limeted



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobagoe Dollars

Mofes 2011 2010
£'000 000

Assels
Property, plant and equipment 5 501,275 508,744
Investment properies [ 1,120,431 905,507
Intungible assets 7 254,278 253,484
Invesiment in associated companics 8 202,010 276,847
Financial assets 9 11,257,043 11,183,338
Financial agzets of mutual fund unit holders 9 1,164,543 1,244,907
Louns and receivables In 1,510,752 2,148,127
Lands for development and sale 1 391,048 305382
Pension plan assets 12 45,827 86,728
Value of inforce life insurance business 13 742043 673,474
Dieferred lax xssels 14 21,480 25,5938
Reinsurance assely 15 680273 761,614
Sepregated fund assews of life insurance policyholders 16 499,502 459,937
Deferred aoquisition costs I T2.657 369,623
Trxation revoverable 138,205 |37,550
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,739,344 1,475,421
Cash and cash equivalents of mutual fund unit holders 13 161,050 150,517
Agsets held for sale 13 __ 1000336 =
Total asscts 21,502,617 20,937,795
Equity nnd linbilities
Share capitel 20 2,008,338 2,003,470
Reserves 21 [264,360) (249,587
Retained eamings | 410,625 1,285 362
Equity attributable (o owners of the parent 3,154,603 3,039,245
Mon-cantrelling interests in subsidiaries 12 38,668 21,079
Total equiry 3,194,271 3,130,324
Liabilides
Insurance contracts 23 11,610,115 12,453,763
Finanginl liabilities 4 2,965 525 2,729,732
Third party interests in mutual funds 15 1,085,343 1,065,548
Segregated fund lahilities of life insurance policyholders 16 499 502 459937
Post retirement medical benefit obligations 26 60,923 78,916
Deferred tax labilitics 14 198,928 208,432
Provision for mxation 56,463 102,308
Orher liahilities 7 B31,191 754,835
Liabilities related to essets held for sale 19 1,000,356 -
Total linbilities IR308.346  17.857.471
Tatal equity and liabilities 21,502617 20,987,705

The accompanying noles form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. On 23 March 2012, the Board of Directors of Guardian
Holdings Limited puthorzed these financial statements for lssue.




GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

Insurance activities

Insurance premium mcome

Insurance premium ceded (o reinsurers
Reinsurance commission income

Change in *Value of inforce life insurunce business™
Met underwriting revenue

Palicy acquisilion expenses
Met insurence benefits and claims

Underwriting expenses
MNet resull rom insurance actvites

Investing nclivities

Investment incame

Met realized gains on financial instruments
Net fair value guins on financial instruments
Fee income

Other income({logs)

Investment contract benefits

Net income from investing netivitics
Net income from all activities

Opcrating expenses
Finance charges
Operating profil

Share of (loss)/profit of nssociated compenics

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Amount attributable o participating policyholders
Profit from continuing aperations

Met less on discontinued operations

Profit for the year

FProfit attributahble to:
- Equity holders of the parent
- Non-controlling inleresis

Earnings per share
- Basie - for profit attributlable v ordimery equity
halders of the parent
- Diluted - for profit antributable 1o ordinary equity
holders of the parent
Esrnings per share for continuing operations
- Basic - for profit attributable to ordinery cquity
holders of the parenl
= Diluted - for profit aiributable to ardinary equity
halders of the parant

The accompinying notes form an integral part of these consolideted financial statements.

Mates

28 ()
28 (b)

13

29

3
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33
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»

35

23.1{d)

19

%

kL

39
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2011 2010
5000 5000
1,952,606 3873213
(1,067,748) {696,729)
140,171 130,451
3,025,031 3,306,935
70,272 75,808
3,005,303 3382743
(513,684) (348,569
(2,221.411) (2572897
(2,735.005) (3,121 466)
360,208 261,277
232,045 871,295
3872 243,003
83,536 98,753
44,464 35,648
52,008 {8,307)
(79,997} {83,725
1,055,928 1,158,667
1,416,136 1,419,944
(729,204) (728,032)
_(110,044)  (82,854)
576,888 609,058
(25,005) 23,026
551,883 632,084
(87.148) {136,798)
464,735 495,286
{8,716 (14,359
456,019 480,927
(209,909) {55.584)
246,110 425343
261,103 405,505
(14.993) 159,838
246,110 425,343
£1.13 $1.94
5110 5148
§2.04 £220
$1.98 5214



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

Profit lor the year

Other comprehensive (loss)income

Exchange differcnces on translanng forcign operations

Cains on propemy revaluation

Actuarial losses an defined benefit pension plans

Other reserve movements

Income tax chorge relating to compoenents of other comprehensive income

Other camprehensive (loss)/income for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss)income attributable to;

- Equity holders of the parent
= Mon-controlling interests

The wecompanying notes form an integral pant of these consolidated financial statements,

2011 2010
5000 5000

246,110 425,343

{17,038} £4,502
1926 1,312
{60,743) {14,771)
534 265
(520) (890)

75,499 54,508

170,611 479,851
220,797 464,856
(50,186) 14995
170,611 479,851




GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobage Dollars

At 1 Junuury 2011

Muovement in unallocated shares
Total comprehensive income/{loss)
Transfer to/from retained earnings

Share option scheme - value of services provided

(Waote 20)
Share option scheme - lapses (Note 20)

Dividends (Note 407

Balance at 31 December 2011

At ]l January 2010

Total comprehensive income
Decrease in non-controlling inlerest
[=sue of Shares

Transfer to/from retemed carmings

Share aption scheme - value of services provided
(Mote 207

Share option scheme - lapses (Mote 20)
Dividends (Note 40)

Balance at 31 December 2010

Attribatable to equity holders of the parent

Total ordinury Mon-
Share Reserves Retalned shareholders' contrafling Tatal
capinal (Mote 21) enrnings equity interests equity
5000 000 000 3000 £'000 5000
2,003,470 (249,587 1,285,362 3.039.245 91079 3130324
197 - - 197 - 197
= (16,091 236,888 20,17 (50,186) 170,611
- 1,318 (1,318) - = =
5,270 - - 5.270 - 3270
[599) : 99 - = =
- - {110 %04} {110,906} (1,.225) (12,1303
2008338 [264,360) 1,410,625 3,134,603 39.668 3,154,271
Altribulable to equity holders of the parent
Total prdinary MNon-
Share Reserves Hetained  sharcholders' controlling Tatal
cupital (Mote 21) earnings equity interests equity
5000 000 L1000 51000 000 5000
1,530,398 (325,189 1,058,786 2,263,995 78,442 2342437
4772 390,084 464 856 14,595 479,851
- - 1.733 1,733 {1,733) =
412,609 - - 412.60% - 412,609
39,389 830 (60,219) - - -
1,950 = = 1,950 - 1950
(876} - 8756 = .
- = (105.898)  (105.398) (625) (106,523)
2,003,470 (249,357 1,285 362 3,039 245 91,079 3,130,324

The accompanying nates form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobage Dollars

Cash Mlows from operating activities

Profit before taxation from continuing operations

Loze before 1axation from dizcontinued operations
Adjustment for specific items included an the accruals basis:
= Finunce charges

= Investment income

Adjustment far non-cash ilems

Inlerest received

Dividends received

Orperating profit before changes in operating assets/inbilities

Met increase in insurance liabilities

Met increase/(decrease) in relnsurance assets
Met incrense in mvestment contracts

Purchaze of financial asscts

Proceeds from sale of ather financial assets
Purchase offadditions (o investment properiics
Proceeds from sale of investment property

Met decrease in loans and receivables

et decrease in other operating pssetslinbilitiss

Cash provided by operating activities

Interest pad
Met tmcation paid

Mel cash provided by/(used in) operating sclivities

Cash Mows from investing activities

Additionsl invesiment m essociated company
Procecds on sale of associated companics
Proceeds on sale of subsidiary company

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchasze af intangible azsets

Met cash provided by investing activitics

Cash Nows from linancing activities
Procecds from issuc of shares

Proceeds from barrowings

Repuyments of borrowings

Dividends paid to equity holders of the parent
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Redemptions from Mutual Funds
Subseriptions (o Mutunsl Funds

Met cash provided by/{used in) financing activities

Net inerease/(decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Motes

41

40

18

011 o
5000 5000
551,883 632,084
(209.909) (55.584)
110,044 82,854
(857,053) (888,213)
(142,149 {339,801}
508,095 0,659
36,133 32,381
297,044 404,380
155,142 445,759
11,941 (48,207)
B3,765 60,596
(3,088,106)  (7.276,094)
2,867,594 6,486,036
(201,376) {188,670)
1184 -
41,873 173,061
164,307 69,495
353,368 126,335
(108,045) (132,065)
(1202513 (107,748
125072 (113,477
{4,688) {3,518)
116,851 8261
- 103,397
(32,608) (46,106)
gl 34
(1,846 (1,632)
78,072 60,716
- 412,609
1,309,355 204,498
(1,169174)  (1,180,089)
(110,906) {105,898)
(1,225) (625)
(689,041} (389 469)
756,457 207,046
95 466 (£49,828)
208,610 (902,689




GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expreszed In Trinldad and Tobago Dollars

1. Incorporation and principal activities af the Group
Guardian Holdings Limited (the ‘Parent’ and ultimale parent) was incorpurated in the Republic of Trinided and Tobage on 8 November 1982 It ls a
public limited linbility holding company. The address of the registered office is | Guardian Drive, Westmoorings S.E., Trinidad and Tobago:

The Guardian Holdings Group (the 'Growp”) is a diversified financial services Group engaged in underwriting all classex of long-term, property and
casualty business, and the provision of pension and asset manapement services. The Group conducts its operations through subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures

The ardinary ehares af the parent company are listed on the Trinidad and Tobago Stock Exchange and the Jamaica Stock Exchange,
1, Significant accounting policies

The prinoipal eccounting policies spplicd in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below, These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise siated.

These consolidared financial statements are prepared in accordance with Imermational Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS), They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, investment properties. derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are carried at fair value

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with IFRS requires the use of cortain critical sccounting estimates. 1 ulso reguires manegement to
exercise its judgment in the process of upplying the Group's necounting pelicies. The arcas involving a higher degree of Judgment or complexity, or arcas
where assumplions and estimustes ore sigmificant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Mote 3.

1,1 Basis of preparation

(a) New standards and amendmenta/revisions to published standards and interpretations effective in 2001

The following emendments (o published standirds are mandatory for the Group's sccounting periods heginning on or after | January 2011:
1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised)

The amendment clarified the definition of a related party without changing the fundamental approach to related party disclosures. The amendment also
provides for a pantial exemption to related party disclosures for government related entities. The udoption did nel have wny impecl on the finuneial
position, performance or disclosures of the Group

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Righes Tssues (Amendment)

The amendment afters the definition of o Gnancial hability in LAS 32 to cxclude rights issucs and to be consisient with IFRS 2, that & pro rata issuc of
rights to all existing shareholders Lo neguire sdditional shares 15 o transaction with an entity's owners in thelr capacity a3 owners. Consequently, those
transactions should be recognised in equity, not comprehensive income. The Group did not enter into any rights issue, option ar warrants which would be
affected by this amendment. The amendment is effective for financial years beginning on or after | February 2010

IFRIC 14

The amendment was made to remove an unintended consequence when an enlity 75 subject (o0 minimum funding requircments and makes an carly
payment af cantributions to cover those requirements. The smendment permils & prepayment of fisture service cost by the entity to be recognised as a
pension asser, The Group is not subject 1o minimum funding requirements, therefore the emendment of the interpretation has no effect on the financial
position or performance of the Group,

IFRIC 19

IFRIC 19 clarifies that equity instruments issued to a credilor 1o extinguish & financial liability are consideration paid. The equity instruments issued are
at their fair value and any gain or loss is recognised immedintely n profit or loss. This emendments is effective for annual periods beginning on or after |

July 2010. This policy is currently being applicd by the Group and did not have any impact on the financial position of the Group.



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

WOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAHR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Doliars

(Continued)

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(2} New standards and amendments/revisions (o published standards and interpretations effective in 2011 {continued)

Improvements to [FRS (issued 2000)

The improvements to IFRS project is an annual process that the IASB has adopted to deal with non-urgent but necessary amendments to [FRS (The
‘annual improvement process’) [n May 20010, the 1ASE issued its third omnibus of amendments 10 1ts standards, primarily with a view o removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording,

1FRS 3 Busines: Combinations

The measurement aptions available for non-controlling interest (NCI) were amended. Only components of WCT that constitute a presant cwngrship inferest
that entitlez their holder to & propartionale share of the entity's nets assets in the event of a liquidation should be measured at fair value or at the present
ownerehip instruments’ proportionate share of the acquires’s identifiable net assets. All other components are to be measured at their acquisition date fur
value

IFRS 7 Financinl Instruments - Disclosures

The amendment was intended Lo simplify the disclosures provided by reducing the volume of disclosures arcund collatzrel held and improving disclosures
by requiring qualitative information to put quantitative information in context. The Group reflects the revised disclosure requirements in Nate 4.2 and
Muote 40.

1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendment clarifics that an entity may present an analysis of each component of other comprehensive income in the statement of changes in equity
or in the notes (o the financial statements. The Group provides this analysis in Note 20,

(k) New standards and amendments/revisions to published standards and interpretations effective in 2011 but not applicable to the Group

The following new and revised TFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations that have been tssued do not apply to the activities of the Group:

> IFRS 3 Business Combinaticns (Contingent consideration arising from business combinations prior o adoption of IFRS 3 (as revised in
2008))

IFRS 3 Business Combinations {Un-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-bazed payment awards)

LAS 34 Interim Financial Statements

[FRIC 13 Customer Layalty Programmes

IFRS | Firse-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Stendards - Limited Exemplion from Compurative IFRS 7 Disclosures for
Firsttime Adopters

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financtal Statements - Group reorganisations im scparatc financial statements

yY7YVYY

¥

{¢) New interpretations and revised or amended standards that are not yet efMective and have not been early adopted by the Group

The improvements become effective for annual periods on or efter either 1 July 2011 or | January 2012, These chanpes are cumently being evaluated by
Managemenl.

b [FRS | First-ime Adoption of Intemational Finencial Reporting Standards (Amendment) - Severe Hyperinflation
and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters - Effective | July 2011

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - Effective | July 2011

1AS 12 Income taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Taxes ; Recovery of Underlying Assets - Effective | January 2012
L1AS | Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive income - Amendments 1o LAS 1- Effective | July 2012

A% 19 Employes Benefits (Revised) - Effective 1 January 2013

TFRS @ Financial Instruments - Clessification and Measurement - Effective January 1 2013

IFRS 10 Consalidated Financial Statements, [AS 27 Separcte Financial Stalements - Effective | January 2013
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements, LAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Effective | January 2013
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities - Effective | Januury 2013

[FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - Effective | January 2013

YYY¥YyYrYyYYTyryry



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCLAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

(Continued)

2. Signilicani sccounting policies (continued)
1.2 Consolidation
{n) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries wre all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally sccompanying o sharchelding of
maore than onc half of the voting rights, The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisahle or convertible are congidered when
aszezging whether the Group contrals another entity, Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date an which control is transferred to the Group. They
are de-conzalidated fram the date on which contral ceases

The Group uses the purchate method of accounting for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instrumenit jesued and lishilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. ldentifiable
aszets acquired and liabilities and contingent liahilities assumed in & busingss combination are measured initially ar their fair values at the acquisition date,
irregpective of the extent of any non-controlling interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
net azzets acquired is recorded as poadwill (see Note 2.7}, If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary scquired,
the difference is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

All intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. Subsidiaries” accounting policies have been changed where necessary 1o enture
consisiency with the policics adopted by the Group. A listing of the Group's subsidiaries and associated companies is set out in Mote 46

(b) Associnted companies

The Group’s investment in its associated companies Is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. An associate is an entity in which the Group
haz significant influence and which I neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture

Under the equity method, the investment in associates is carried in the consolidated statement of financial pesition at cost plus past acquisition changes in
the Group's shure of net assets of the associates. Goodwill relating to associates is included in the carrying amaunt of the Investment and is not amortized
The consolideted income statement reflects the share of the resulis of aperations of the associates. When there has been a change recognized directly in the
equity of the associstes, the Group recognizes its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Profits or
losses resulting from transactions berween the Group and the associates are eliminated 1o the extent of the interest in the associates.

The share of profit of associated companies is shown on the face of the consolidated income statement. This is profit attribulable (o the equity holders of
the aszociates.

The financial staiements of the atsociates are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, Whete necessury, adjustments we made Lo
bring i accounting policles in line with the Graup

After application of the equity method, the Group delermines whether it 15 neccssary to recognize an additional impairment loss an the Group's investment
in associates. The Group delermines ol cech consolidated statement of financial position date, whether there Is any objective evidence that the investment
in associates 15 impared, I tis 15 the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference hetween the recoverable amount of the
associates and il carrying value and recognizes the amount in the consolidated income statement, A listing of the Group's associates is set out in Note 46,

(c) Joint ventures

Jointly gonirelled entities we these thar involve the establizhment of a carparation, pastnership or other entity in which each vertuter has an interest, The
entily operates in the seme way as other entities, except that a contractual arrangement berween the venturers establishes joint control over the economic
activity of the entity. The Oroup's interest in jointly contralled entitles is accounted for on an equity basis,

{d) Muotual Tunds

The Group menages and controls sertain mutval funds through is asset management subsidiary, Guardian Asset Management, in which it also has a
beneficial ownership interest. These funds have been consalidated in these financinl statements in accordance with LAS 27,



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

{Continued)

2, Significant accounting policics (continued)

2.3 Sepment reporting

A business segment 15 o group of assets and operations engaged in providing products and services thar are subject 1o risks and returns thar are differemt

from those of other business segments. For management purpases, the Group s organized into business units hased on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments;

(i} Life, Health and pension insurance
(i1} Property and casuealty nsurance
(iii) Asset management

Transfer prices between operaling scgments arc set on an arms length basis in & manner simitar with third parties. Segment income, expenses and results
will include those trunsfiers botween segments which will then be eliminated on consolidation.

24 Foreign currency translation

() Functional and presentation currency

ttems included in the financial statements of cech of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional cumreney”). The consclidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Trinidad and Tobago dollars, which 1
also the Parent's functionel currency.

() Trunsactions and balances in the financial statements

Foreign currency transactions e trunsluted into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monctary pssels and
liabilities denominated in foreign cumencics are recognized in the consolidated income statement.

(e} Group

The resulis and financial pesition of all the Group entities thal have a funetional currency different from the presentation currency are translated Into the
preseniation currency as follows:

(1) assets and liabilities for each congolidated stelement of financial position presented are transtated at the ¢lasing rate at the end of the reporting period.
(it} income and expenses for cach consolidated income statement are translated ot average exchange rutes; and

(iii} all resulting exchange differences are recognized as a separate companent of equity,

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to the consalidated statement of
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is seld, liquidated or wound up, such exchange differences are recognized in the consolidated income

statement ag part of the gain or loss on sale,

Goodwill and fuir value sdjustments arising on the acquisition of » forelgn entity ure treated s the forcign entity’s assets and liabilities and are transiared
ol the closing rate,

15 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold properties compnse mamly offices occupied by the Group and are shown st fuir value, based on periodic, but &t least tricnnial, valuations hy
externnl independent uppraisers, lese subsequent depreciation for buildings. Any sccumulated depreciation at the dare of revaluarion is eliminated against
the gross carrying wmount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalucd emount of the assct. All other property, plant and equipment are
staled al historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impuirment, Historical cont includes expenditure that is directly anributable 1o the
seguisition of the items.
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2, Significant ncceunting policies (continued)

15 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subscquent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as o seporale asset, i spproprinte, only when il is probabie thal future
cconomic benefis associawed with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item cum be measured relisbly. All ather repairs and maintenance are
charged o the consalidated incame statement during the financinl period in which they we ingurred.

Ineremses in the carying amount arizing on revaluation of land and buildings are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
Decreases that offsct previous increases of the same asset are charged against fair vulue reserves directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

inceme; all other decreases are charged to the consolidated income statement.

Lend 15 not deprecisted. Depreciation on other assets is charped over the estimated useful lives of the assets using the following rates and metheds:

Freehold building - straight line method, 2% per annum
Leasehald property « over the period of the lease
Adir-conditioning equipment - declining balance methed, 20% per annum
Motar vehicles - straight-line method, 20% per annum and reducing balance basis, 25% per annum
Other plant, machinery,
office furmiture & equipment - straight line methed, 10 - 40% per annum

An asset’s carrying amount 15 wrilien down immediately o its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Mote 2.9),

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by compuring proceeds with carrying amount. These are incloded in the consolidated income statement,
When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation surplus account are transferred to retained eamings,

2.6 Investment properties

Freehold o leasehold properties held for long-term rental yields that are not occupied by the Group are classified a5 investiment propertics. Investment
properties comprise frechold land end buildings. They are measured initially a1 cost, including transection costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properiics arc stated at fair value. Falr value is based on active market prices, adjusted, us necessary for any difference in the nature, location or
cendition of the specificd asset. Fair value is determined annually by accredited external independent valuators, Investment propertics are not subject 1o
depreciation. Any appreciation or diminution in value is recognized in the consolidated income statcment.

If investment praperties become owner-occupied, they are reclassified as praperty, plant and equipment, and their fair value at the date of reclussification
becomes lts cost for subsequent sccounting periods. Alternatively, where properties classified as property under LAS 16 beeome investment propertics
because of & change in use, these propertics are accounted for as fnvestment properties and any differcnces arising between the carying amount and the
fair value of these items ul the dote of transfer are recognized in equity as a revaluation of property. However, if o fuir value gain reverses a previous
impairment loss, the gain is recognized in the consolidated income statemem

Investment propertics are derccognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
ne future economic benelits are expected from ite dispasal. Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the property revaluation reserve in equity is
trinsferred Lo retamed camings.

The Group applies the fair value model for investment propertics as described abave, However, in exceptional ceses for an mvestment property under
construction where fair value is not readily delerminable, it is stated at cost until either the fair value becomes readily delermmable, or construction is
campleted (whichever is earlier).

Properties under construction thut ure mtended for sale are classified as lands for development und sale. These balances are carried at the lower of cast and
net realizable value,
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21, Significant acconnting policies (conlinued)
2.7 Intangible assets
(n) Goodwill

Goodwill represente the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the nel identifieble assets of the scquired
subsidiary/associate &t the acquisition date. Goodwill on sequisition of subsidierics is reporicd on the consolidated siatement of financial pesition.
Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in imvestments in wssocistes. Goodwill s tested annually for impaiment and carried &t cost less
accumtilated impafrment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill ure ot reversed. Gains and losses on the dispaeal of an entity include the earrying amaunt
of goadwill relating to the entity sold.

UGeodwill is sllocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The wllocation is made to those cash-generaling units or groups of
cash-generating units thar are expected 10 benefit from the business combinution in which the goodwill arose. Each of those cash-gencrating units
represents the Group's investment in each country of operation by each primary segment,

(b} Brands

Brands acquired through direct purchase or through o business combimution we carricd at cost Jess accumulated amortization. Amartization is calculated
uging the straight-line method to allocate the cost of brands over their estimated usefial lives which range berween 3 and § years.

(e} Computer software and websile development costs

Acquired computer software licenses and website developmenl costs are cupitulized on the basis of the casts incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific saftware. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifisble and unique software products controlled by the Group, and that

will probably penerate economic benefits excesding costs beyond one year, arc elso recognized 2= intangible assets. These casts are amortized over their
estimated useful lives

Costs essociated with developing or maintaining computer sofiwire progrummes are recognized 85 an expense as incurred,

2.% Financial assels

(a) Initial recognition and subsequent measurcment

Financial essets within the scope of LAS 39 are classified as financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or held-to-maturity
imvestments az appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financiul usses ot initial recognition. The classification depends on the purpose

for which the investments were acquired or originated,

Financial assets are recognized initially ot fuir value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs

The Group's financial assets include cash and short-term depesits, debt seeurities, equity securities, interest receivable, receivables arising from insurance
cantracts and reinsurance contracts and other louns and receivables.

{1y) Financial assets ui fair valoe through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or less include financial asscts held-for-trading and those designated al fuir value through profit or loss &t
Inception. Investments typically bought with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held-for-trading. The Group's subsidiarics, with the

exception of its assel management company, do not engage in wrading financial assets. For investments designated ot fair value through profit or loss, the
following criteria must be mel:

> The designation climinates or significantly reduces the inconsistent trentment thet would otherwisc arise from measuring the assets or
lisbilities or recognizing gaing er losses on a different basis: or

> The assets and liabilities are part of & group of finanviul asscts, (inancial liabilities or both which are managed and their performance
evalunted an a fair value basis, in accordance with 8 documented risk management or investment strategy
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.8 Financial assels (continued)

(b} Financinl assets at fair value through profit or loss {continued)

These investments are mibiglly recorded ut fwr value. Subsequent to imitial recognition, these investments sre remensured uf fwr velue. For volue
pdjustments and realized gain and loss are recopnized in the conzalidated income statement

(¢} Held-to-maturity fonancial assels

Mon-derivative financial assers with fixed or dererminable payments and fixed maturities are classified as held-to-matrity when the Group has the
pogitive imtention and ability to hold until maturity, These investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable 1o the acquisition are also ncluded in the cost of the investment. After initial
meagurement, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured ot amortized cost, vsing the effective inlerest rule method, Guns and losses are recognized in
the consalidated income statement when the investments are derecognized or impaired, s well my through the amoriization progess.

(d) Loans

Loans and receivables are non-derivolive finaneiel wssets with fixed or determinable paymenis that are not quoted in an active market. The invesiments are
mitially recogniieed ot cost, being the fisir value of the consideration paid for the acquizition of the investment. All ransaction costs directly anributable o
the scquisilion ere imeluded in the cost of the investment. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured ar amonized cast, using the
effective interest rate method, Gains and loszes are recognized in the consalidated income statement when the investments are derécognized or impaired,
us well s through the amortization process.

{e) Lands for development nnd sale

Properties under construction that are intended for sale, are classificd as lands for development and sale. These balances are carried at the lower of cast and
net realizeble values,

(M) Fair value of financial assets
The fuir value of quoted mvestments (primarily equity securities) are based on current bid prices a1 the consalidated statement of financial position date, If
the market for a financial assct is not active (primarily government securities, debentures and corporate bonds), the Group establishes fair value by using

voluation techniques These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference o other instruments that wre substantially the same and
discounted cash flow analysie making maximum use of market inputs and relving as little os possible on entity-specific inpuls.

If the fair value of unguoted equities cannot be measured relinbly, these finuncial ussels are measured ot cost, being the fur value of the considerntion paid
far the sequisition of the investment. All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment.

() Derecognition of financial assets

A finun¢ial ussel (or when epplicable, a part of a financial asset or pant of a group of simifar financial aseets) is derecognized when

- The rights to receive cash flows from the rsset have expired.

> "' Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed tn obligation to pay them in full without materiyl delay to &
third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement

L The Group has transferred it rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
» has transferred substantially all the risk and rewards of the nsset, or
> has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has ransferred its right 1o receive cash flows from an usset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the sset nor transferred control of the asset, the assel is recogmized to the cxtent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset Continuing
invalvement that takes the form of a gusrantee over the trungferred assct 15 measurcd o the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amaount of consideration thal the Group could be required to repay,
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2. Significant accouniing policies (confinued)
2.8 Financial assets (continued)
() Derecognition of Minancial rssets (continued)

When continuing involvement takes the form of o written and / or purchased option (including a cash seftled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the smount of the transferred wssel thet the Group may repurchase, except thul, m the cuse of o
written put option (including & cash setiled option or similar provision) on an wssel mewured ot fair value, the exient of the Group's continuing
Imvolvement is limited to the lower of the fair vilue of the transferred asset and the option cxercise price.

2.9 Impairment of assets
(a) Finuncial usscts carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence thut an impaimment loss on essets carricd ot amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the impakrment loss is measured
as the difference betwesn the psset’s cmmying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected credit fosses that
have nol been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the loss is
recogmized in the consolideted income statement,

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually
or callectively for financial assets thut ere not individunlly sigmificant. If it is determined thmr no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial wssel, whether significant or not, the assct {5 included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and that group of financiel essels i collectively mssessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not Included in & eollactive assessment of impaimment, The impeirment assessment is performed af
each consoliduted statement of financial position date.

If i n subsequent peried, the amaunt of the impairment loss decreases and the decresse con be related obfectively to an cvent occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss 15 reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated income statement, to the extent that the currving value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

(b) Impairment of non-finencial assets

The Group asseszes at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an assct may be impaired. IT any such indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the essel’s recoverable amount, An azset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
ar cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs 10 sell ond 115 value in use. The recoverabls amount is determined on an individual asset basis, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows thot are fargely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated insame statement in those expense culegories congistent with the function of
the impaired asset.

Far assets excluding goodwill, an assessmenl is mode wl cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previous
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the fust impuirment loss
was recognized, If that s the case, the carmying amount of the asset |5 increased 10 its recovernble amount, That incrensed amount ceannot exceed the
carrying amount thal would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prier vears. Such reversal
15 recognized m the consolidated income statement unless the asset is carried ot revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treared as a revaluation
nerense.

2,10 Scgregated funds
Segregated funds” assees and liabilities represent funds meintained to meet specific investment ahjectives of policyholders who bear the investment risk.

The value of the fund changes based on the market value (luctuations of the assets held by the fund and the retums eamed by the investments of the fund.
Investment income and both realized and unrealized guins and losses acerue directly to the policyhalders.
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2, Significant acenunting policies {continued)

110 Segregated funds (continued)

The xesets of each fund are segregated and are not subject to claims that arise out of &ny other business of the Group. The assets and linbilities are carmied
a1 fair volues. Deposits, withdrawals, net investment income and realized gains and losses, togeiher with the increese or deersase in the marke? value of
nvestments related to segregated policies are charged or credited 1o the segregated funds liabilites.

The Group carns fees for menagement of the funds, policy administration, 2s well as effecting the sumendenng of units,
2.11 Offseiting NMnancial instruments

Financial aszets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reparted in the consolidated siatement of financial position only when there i3 a legally
enforceable right to offser the recopnized amounts and there is an Intention to senle on & net basis, or to realize the pssel pnd seftle the hability
simultanecusly

2.12 Cash and cash cavivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hund, deposits held at call with benks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within barmawings in current financial labilities on the consolidated statement of
financial positen.

2.13 Share capital

Shores are clossified as equity when there 5 no obligation o transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly attributable 1o the issue of equity
instruments are shown in equity 28 a deduction from the proceeds

2.14 Insurance and inyvestment contracis
{a) Classification

The Group i1ssues contracts that tronsfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant msurance
risk. Such contracts may also wransfer financial risk. As a peneral puideline, the Group defines &s significant insurance risk the possibility of having to pay
benefits on the ocourrence of an insured event that are at leest |0% more than the benefits pavable if the insurcd event did not occur,

Investment contracis are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk.

A number of msurance contracts contain o discretionary participation feature ("DFF™). This femture entitles the holder to receive, as o supplement to
guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:
&) that are 1ikely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;
b) whose amount or timing is contractyally ot the discretion of the Group,
¢} and that are contractually bused on:
(1) the performance of & specified pool of contracts or & specificd type of conract;
(fi) realized and/or unrealized investment retums on a specified pool of assets held by the Group; or
(i) the profil or loss of the Group, fund or other entity that issues the contract.

The terms and conditions of these contracts set out the bases for the determination of the amounts on which dizeretionary benefits are based and within
which the Group may exercise its disoretion as to the quantum and timing of their payments to contract holders, which will be subject to the advice of the
Growp's actuary or a locally appainted actuary,

{b) Recognition and measurement

Insurance contrecls are classified into four main categories, depending on the duration of rigk and whether ar not the terms and conditions are fixed.
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1, Significant accounting pulicies {eentinued)

214 Insurance and investment controcts (continued)
{b) Recognifion and measurement {continued)

(i} Short-term insurance contracts

These contracts are principally property, motor, casualty (employers” liahility, public liability), marine, group life and health Insurance contracts, Health
insurance contracts include both group and individual health insurance,

Property insurinee contracts indemnify the Group's customers in the event of a loss from a specified insured peril such as fire, windstorm or earthquake
(not limited to these penis) up to the insured amount and within the terms of the policy conditions. These contracts gre issued for both private and
commercinl rigks. Customers who undertake commercial activities on their premises could also receive compensation for consequential loss/business
intermuption caused by the insured perils.

Movar Insurance contracts indemnify the Group's customers for their legal requirement under the relevant country’s Roed Traffic Act which in cenain
instances stipulate unlimited coverage for third perty liability. These contracts may be extended for additional caverage such as physical damage, theft and
personnl aceident.

Cazualty insurance contracts provide coverage for liability exposures that indemmify the Group's customers agamst aciions from third pertics which are
subject to the policy limits and conditions. The typicel protection effered i3 designed for employers whe become tegally liable o pay compensatian w
infured employees (employers' liability) and employers who become lisble to pay compensation ta third parties for bodily harm or property damage
{public liahility),

Marine insurance contracts indemnify the Group’s customers for loss or damage to their insured cargo, cammencial hull and pleasure craft vessels. Third
party coverage is also provided,

Grraup life contracts pretect the Group's cusiomers from the consequences of cvents (such as death or critical illness) thar would affect the ahility of the
customer or histher dependants to maintain their current level of income. Health insurance contracts pravide for bath unexpected and preventative medieal
treatment and drugs. On these contracts, the benefils paid on occurrence of the specified insurance event are gither fixed or linked ta the extent of the
economic loss suffered by the policvholder, There are no maturity or surrender benefits,

Far all thesc contracts, premiums are recognized as revenue (eamed premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premiums
received on inforce contracts that refate to unexpired risks ot the consulideted stutement of financial position date is reported as an unearned premium
liahility, Premiums are shown before deduction of commissions payuble to agents and brokers and exclude any taxes or dutles levied on such premiums,
Premium income includes premiums collected by agents und brokers not yet received by the Group,

Uneamed premiums represent the portion of premiums written in the current year which relate to periods of insurance subsequent to the consolidated
statement of financial position dule caleulnted wsing cither the three hundred and sixry-fifths method or the rwenty-fourths method. Uneamed premiums
relating to marine cargo are calouluted using |80 days efter the first date of sailing. Unearned premiums relating to group life are caloulated based on 25%
of net premiums writlen,

Clurms end loss adjustment expenses are charged 1o ncome as incurred based on the estimated |inbility for compensation owed to contract halders. They
erise from cvents that have occurred up to the consolidated statement of financial position dute cven if they have not yet been reponted 1o the Group. The
Group docs not discount its labilives for unpaid claims other than for disebility clasms. Lisbilitics for unpaid claims are estimated using techniques such
as the input of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group und stubistical analyses for the claims incurred but not reparted ("TENR™), and to
estimate the expected ultimate cost of mere complex elaimy thut may be affected by external factors such as court decisions, Estimates are continually
revised as mare information becomes available and for the effeets of anticipated inflation. Adjustments arising on these revisions are recognized within
claims expense in the current year.

{if) Lang-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms and withaut DPF

These contrects ingure cvents associated with human life over a long duration, Premiums are recognized as revenue when they hecome payahle by the

policyholder. Pramiums are shown before deduction of commission. Benefits are recorded as an expense when incurred.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Insurance and investment contracts {continued)

(b} Recognition and measurement (continued)

(H) Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and puaranteed terms and without DPF (continued)

A linbihity for policyholders' benefits that ure expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are recognized,  Typically, the linbility
15 determined us the sum of the expected discounted value of the benefit payments less the expected discounted value of the theoretical premiums that
would be required (o megt the benefits based on the valuation assumptions used (the valuation premiums). In paricular, the liability is based on
wssumplions as (o mortality and investment income. A margin for adverse deviations iz included in the assumptions.

The liebilities are recaleulated at ench consolideted statement of financial position date and the change in the liability is recognized as an expense in the
consolidated income statement.

For the Trmided end Tobago life insurance subsidiaries, reserves held are calculated based on the Zillmerised Met Premium Method. A gross premium
methed is used for some lines of business.

For the Jamaican life insurance subsidiary, reserves are calculated using the Policyholder Premium Method as required under the Insurance Act 2001 of
Jamaica

For the Dutch Caribbean life insurance subsidiary, reserves are calculsted on a Modified Net Premium Method in accordance with the requirements of the
Central Banks of the Netherlunds Antilles and of Aruba,

Unit linked and Interest sensitive insirance contracts

The premiums paid for these contracts contain an element that covers the insured event &nd another which s used to accumulate cash values available for
withdrawal of the option of the policyholder. These cash values cam interest

Unit Linked insurance confracts

For the Jamaican [ife insurance subsidiary, the portion of the premium covering the insured risk i recorded as premium income, The portion of the
premium which accumulates a cash value for the policyholder is recorded as u linbility and i5 eredited to the account of the policyholder in the respective
segregated fund (Mote 2,100 1o which the contract is linked.

The liahilities arizing from the unit linked contracts comprise the liability for the insured risk and the vceumulated cash valuz. The hability for the ingured
rigk iz determined in a manner identical to the liability for contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms and s included in the policyhalders’ liability balance
while the liakility for the accumulated cash value s cerried of fuir value of the assets which fund the linhilities. The lishilities for the accumulated cash
vatues are included in the segregated funds® liability balance. The Group bears no risk in relation to segregated funds® Hability.

The chonge in the liability wrising from the insuranee risk is recognized as an expense in the consalidated income statement

Intares:
The Jamaican life insurance subsidiery issues interest sensitive policies for which the entire premium s recorded as premium fncome and there is no
unbundling of the premium receipt between the insurance and investment companents. The lability fior the interest sensitive policies is determined as the

sum of the linbility for the insured risk az determined ahove for unit linked policies and the lability for the acoumulated cush values. The entire linbility
for the interest sengitive policies is recorded In insurance contracts

‘The change in the overall lHability for the interest sensitive policies is recognized ag an expense in the consolidated income statement
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued})

2.14 Insurance and Investment contracts {continued)
{b) Recogmition and measurement (contimued)

(Eii) Long-term insurance confracts without fixed terms

Utnit Linked insurance contracts

For the Trinidad and Tobago life insurance subsidiary the entire premium on these contracts js recorded as premium income. The liabilities held for these
contracts are the eontract holders” notional account balances. The morality charges deducted in each period from the contract holders as a group are
considered adequate 1o cover the expected total death benefit olaims in excess of the contract holders’ notional sccount balances in each period; no
additicnal liability is therefore established for these ¢laims other than a small provision for incurred bul not reported claims, Some of the Group's unil-
linked annuity contracts contain o guarantes that entilles the holders to a minimum guarenized crediting rute over the life of the pelicy. A reserve is held
for this guarantee

{iv) Long-term insurunce coniracts with fixed and guaranteed terms and with DI'F
In addition to death or life benefits, these contracts contain a DFF that entitles the holders to o bonus or dividend declared by the company from time (o
time. The discretionary slement of the benefits payable under these policies, s well as the guarenieed elements are tregted os liebilities and wny changes in

the total henefits due are rocognized as chorges in the consolidated mcome statement and form part of inoreases in reserves for future benefits of
palicyhalders

(¥} Investment contraces
The Group issues investment contrmets including deposil sdministration contracts and individun! deferred &nnuity contracts. Insurance premiums are

recognized directly as linbilities. These linbilitics are incrensed by crediled interest or change in the enit prices and are decreased by policy administration
fees, mortality and surrender cherges and any withdrawals, Revenue consists of investment income and interest credited I8 treated as an cxpense.

() Ouistanding claims
Provision for owtstanding claims and the reloted ¢osts of setlement are bused on meidents reported before the end of the financial year and include

appropriate provisions for ¢laims mowrred but not yet reporied.  Estimates sre continually revised as more information becomes available and for the
effects of anticipated inflation. Adjustmenis erising on these revisions are included with claims expense in the current year.

{d) Policyholders® benefits
Maturitics and annuities are accounted for when due

Dreath and disability clums and surenders are recognized in the financial statements in the vear in which they have been notified.

Differences between the estimated claims and subsequent settlements are recopnized in the consolidated income statement in vear of settiement.

(#) Value to sharcholders of inforee long-term besiness

Besides estimating the insurance linbilities, the Group estimales the present value of future profits to be eamed on its long-term lines of business, This
value 1o shareholders of inforce long-term business i included on the consolidated statement of financial position and changes in it flow through the
congalidated income statement. The value to shareholders of inforce long-term business 13 calculated as the present value of free cash flow produced by
the Insurance contracts and their associated reserves thut ure infores w8t the consolidated statement of financial position date.

(M) Delerred acquisition costs ("DAC™)

Commizsions paid 1o agents and brokers for property, casunlty and shori-duration life insurance contracts that are related to securing new contracts and
renewing existing contracts are expensed over the terms of the policics &s premium is camed. All other cosis are recopnized as expenses when incurred
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{Continued)

1, Significant pceounting policies {continued)
2.14 Insurance and investment contracts (continued)
(g) Linbility ndequacy test

At each consolidated statement of financial position date, the Growp assesses whether 1fs recognized insurance Labilitics arc adequaie, using curreni
estimates of future cash flows under its insurence contracts, |f that assessment shows that the carrying amount of its insurance lizbilitics is inadequate, the
deficiency is recognized in the consoliduted income staiement and the amount of the relevant insurance liahilities is Increased.

(h) Reinsurance contracts held

Contrects enicred into by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one of more contracts issued by the Group and
that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held,

Contracts that do not meel these clossification requirements are classified as financial assets. Ingurance contracts entered inta by the Group under which
the contract holder 1 another msurer (inwerd reinsurance) are included with nzurance contracts

The henefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurunce contracts held are recopnized as reinsurance assets. These assets congist of shar-term
balances due from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers gre measured consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of cech reinsurance contract Reingurance liabilities are primarily premiums pavable for reinsurance contracts
und are recognized s an cxpense when doe,

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on & quarterly basis. I there is objective evidence thar the reinsurance asser ie impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the remsurance asset (o it recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment lass in the consalidated income
statement,

(i) Heceivables and pavables related to Insurance contracts and investment contracts

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include emounts due to and fram agents, brokers and insurance contract holders 1 there is
objective evidence that the insurunce teceivable is impaired, the Group reduces the camylng amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and
recognizes that impoirment luss in the consolidated income siatement.

(i) Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance comtracts permit the Group to sl (usually damaged) property sequired in seitling & cluim {salvage), The Group may also have the right to
pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs (subrogation). The estimuted cost of clwims includes a deduction for the expected value of salvage and
other recaveries.

2.15 Borrowings

Romowings are recognized initielly ot fair value, plus directly sntributable tranzaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans are
subsequently measured af amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income stafement when the
liahilities are derecognised as well es through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calvulnied by taking into sccount any discount or premium on sequisition and fees or costs that are wm integrel pert of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation 15 included in finance costs in the income statement

Rorrowing costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construetion or production of a qualilying nsset (.. an ussel thol necessanly takes n
substantial period of time 1o get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalised

20
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2. Significant sccovnting policies (continued)
2,16 Derivative finnncial instroments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fuir
value. All derivative financial instruments are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value as asscis when favorsble W the
Group and liakilitics when unfavarable, Realized and unrealized gains and losscs on trading derivatives are reflected in income and recognized as trading
gaing or losses.

2.17 Taxation

Tex on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax, Cument tax comprises 1ax payable calculated on the basis of the
taxable income for the yoar using the prevmbing tex rete and any wdjustment of tux payoble for previous years,

Deferred tax g provided, using the liability method, on all temparary differences berween the camrying amounts for financinl reperting purposes and the
amounts used for laxation purposes, excepl differences relating lo the initial recogniticn of assets or liabilities which affect neither accounting nor tacable
profil. Deferred lax assels we laxes recoverable in future periods in respect of deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward. Net
deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Tax on the profit is charged ot varying rates depending on the type of business that the individual entities are engaged in and the country m which they
reside,

2.15 Employee benelits
(a) Pension plans

The Group cperaics o number of defined benefit and defined contribution plens, the nssels of which are held i separate trustee-administered funds.
Except in the case of ane pension plan, the plans are generally funded by payments from employvees and by the relevant Group companics after taking
gccount of the recommendations of the independent quatified sctuaries.

A defined benefit plan i3 a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an emploves will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one
or more factors such as age, vears of service and compensation. A defined contribution plan iz a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
wssets o pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the curtent or prior periods,

The asset recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation ot the consohdaizd statemsnt of Minancinl pusition date less the fwr value of plin nssets, together with adjustments for unrecognized
pctunnial guins or losses and past service costs. Plan nssets exclude any insurance contracts issued by the Group.

For defined benefit plans, the pensinn accounting costs are ascessed using the projected unit eredit method. Under this method, the cost of providing
pensians is charged to the consalidated income statement 50 as 1o spread the regular cost over the service lives of employees in accordance with the advice
of o qualified actuary, who camies out full veloations of the pluns cvery three years. The pension obligation 15 memsured as the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government securitics which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the refated linbility,
All sctuarial gaing and Iostes are recopnized immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group's contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are charged to the consalidated income statement in the year to which they relate.
{b) Fest retirement medical benelit obligations

The Group's subsidiary in the Dutch Canbbean provides post-retirement medical benefits to its permanent emplovess who retire from nctive service, their
spouses and their dependents. The entitiement to these henefit is based on the employes remaining in service up to retirement age or leaving service due
to il health. The expected costs of these benefis are acerued over the period of emplovment, using a methodology similar to that for defined benefit plans.
Al ectuarial pains and losses are recognized immediately. Independent quelified actuwrics carry cut & valustion of these obligations.



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trimided and Tobago Dollars

(Continued)

2, Significant accounting policies (conlinued)
2.13 Employee benefits (continued)

{€) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan, The furr volue of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount Lo be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the aptions
granted. At each consolidated statement of financial position dete, the entity revises it cstimates of the number of options that are expected 1o hecome
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the revision of onginul estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement, and & carresponding adjustment o
equity over the remaining vesting period. The proceeds received net of any directly anributable transaction costs are credited to share capital when the
options are exercised

(d) Employee share ownership plan ("ESOP")
The employees of subsidiaries incorporaled in Trinidad and Tobago have the option 1a receive their bonuses in cash andlor ardinary shares of the parent

company purchased on the open market. in accordance with the terms outlined in the Trust Deed governing an appraved ESOP, The Group recognizes an
expense within staff costs when bonuses are upwarded,

() Profit shuring and bones plans
The Group recognizes a lability and an expense for bonuses and profit sharing based on a formula that 1akes into consideration the profit attributable 1o

the Group's shareholders afler certuin adjustments. The Group recognizes a pravision where contractually obligated or where there is o pist practice that
has created a constructive obligntion,

219 Pruvisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation es » result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow
of resqurces will be required to sertle the obligation and the amount has been relinbly estimated, Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses:
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelthood that an outflow will be required in settlernent is determined by considering the class of

obligations as a whole. A provision s recognized even if the ikelihood of an outflow with respect 10 any ane item included in the same class of obligations
may be small,

2.20 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value for services rendered after eliminating revenue within the Group, Revenue is recognized as fillows:
{a) Premium income

Premium income is recogmized on the accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the underlying contragts us oullined in Note 2,14,

(b} Investment income
Interest income is recagnized using the effective interest method. Rental income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on the pecrunl busis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Realized and unrealized investment gains and losses are recognized in the
congalidated income statement in the period in which they arise,

(c) Commission income
Commissions are recognized on the accrual basis when the service has been provided,

(d) Fee income

Fees are camed from the management of the assets of the segregated funds and deposit edministration funds and from general policy administration and
surrenders, Fess are recognized in the perind in which the services are rendered.
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2, Significant nccounting policies (continued)

120 Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) Fee income (continued)

For the asset management company in the Group, portfolio, asset management fees and ather management advisory and service fees are recognized based

on the applicahle service contracts over the period the service is provided. Management fees and commissions arising from negotiating, or puarticipating in
the negatiation of a transaction for a third party are recognized on completion of the underlying transuction,

221 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks und rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases are charged 1o the vonselidated income statement on a straight-line hasis over the period of the lease.

2.12 Dividend distribution

Dividend disiribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as an appropristion in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period in
which the dividends wre spproved by the Group's Board of Directors.

123 Finance charges

Finance charges are recognized as an expense in the period in which they wre incurred cxeept to the extent that they are capitalized when directly
nlinbuleble to the acquisition, construction or production of an investment property or in developing properties for sale

.24 Earnings per shure

Hasic eamings per share is caleulated by dividing profit or loss antributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares oulstanding during the period.

For the diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, such as convertible debt and shure options granted to employees. Patential or contingent share issunnces are reated os dilutive when their
conversion 1o shares would decrease nel cumings per share.

.25 Assels under managemenl

The Group provides custody and trustes discretionary inveslment mansgement services to third parties. Such assets under management represent the
munaged funds administered by the asset management company.

226 Subscriptions and redemptions on Mutual Funds pertfolio

(2} Subseriptions - Linits relating 10 the various pools of mutual funds consalidated in the Group®s financial statements could be subscribed based on the
net asset value per unit of the underlying funds determined on each business day.

(b) Distributions - The net income and net realised capital gains of the various pools of mutual funds are caloulated and avcrued to the investor daily and
distributed monthly, Investors have the option either to receive a cash distribution of to reinvest income distributions inlo units ot the prevailing
subscription price as at the date of distribution.

(¢) Redemptions - Units releting to the various pools of mutual funds consolidated in the Ciroup's financial statemeénts are redeemed ol o price per unit
based on the net assel value of the underlying funds published on the date that the request is made

1.27 Comparative information

Where necessary, comparative data hus been edjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current vear.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities during the succeeding financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thal are believed o
e repsonable under the circumstances.

(a) The ultimate liabllity arising from clalms made under insurance confracts

The estimation of the ultimate hability arising from claims mede under insurance contracts is an important sccounting estimale. There are several Sources
of uncertainty that need (o be considersd in the estimate of the liability that the Group will ultimately pay for such clzims in particuler, the claims erising
fram motor, casealty and health insurance contracts.

{b) Estimute of fulure benelit payments and premiums arising from long-ierm insurance confracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-lerm msurance contriets 15 dependent on estimates mode by the Group, Estimates are made as 1o the
expected number of deaths for each of the years in which the Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases these estimates on standard moriality tables
adjusted where appropriate to reflect the Group's own experience or expectations. For contracts that insure the risk of longevity, ne allowance 15 made for
expected mortality improvements, The estimated number of deaths determines the value of the benefit payments and the value of the valuation premiums
The main source of uncertainty is that epidemics (such as AIDS or 3ARS) und wide-ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise
hobits, could result in future mortality being significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in which the Group hes significant exposure to
moriality nsk.

However, contimuing improvements m medical care and social conditions could result in improvements in longevity m excess of those allowed for m the
estimates used 10 determine the liability for contracts where the Group is exposed to longevity risk,

Estimates are nlso made #s (o future invesiment income ansing from the sssets backing long-term insurance contracts, These estimates e bised on
current marke! retumns 88 well a2 expectations shout future economic and financial developments See Mate 4.1.4 (e) for the sensitivity of the value af
insurance labilities o changes in assumptions used 1o value these liabilities

(e} Value of Inforee life insurance business

In determiming this value, assumptions relating to future mornality, persistence and the lavel of expenses are based on cxperience of the type of busincss
concerned The assumptions made and methods employed are reviewed each year in light of the sctual experience and dala available. Any significant
changes mude to these can create a souree of profit or logs. The following tables present the effect on the profit or loss (o changes in the assumptions used
i the estrmation of velue to sharcholders of inforce long term business,

Change in Effect on
variable Consolidated income

2011 2010
For the Trinidudinn life insurance subsidiarics: 5000 5000
Variahle
‘Worsening of mortality + 1.0%% 4,854 4,335
Improvement of annuitant mortality + 5.0% 6,771 5882
Lowering of investment remurms - 1.0% 45247 39467
Worsening of hase renewal expense level +5.0% 15,933 14,783
Worsening of expenze inflation rate + .0% 26.881 .07
For the Jamaican life insurance subsidiary:
Vurinble
Waorsening of mortality + 10.0% 7,423 4,359
Lowering of investment retums - 2.0% 132,338 108,274
Worsening of base renewal expense level + 5.0% 4,266 7,002
Worsening of expense inflation rate +1.0% 20,439 33,650
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3, Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying accounting palicies (continued)

(d) Fair valuation of linancial assels

The fuir value of financial assets that are not taded in an active market 5 determined by using an internally developed bond valuation model,
Assumplions used in Unis model are velideted and periodically reviewed internally by qualified personnel. Where applicable, data is calibrated to ensure

that putputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. Changes in assumptions used in valuations could affect reported fair vilue of financiel
assets. Key assumptions are based on current market yields. The following shows the effect on the profit or loss 1o changes in the market yields,

Effect on consolidated income
2011 2010
$'000 §°000 S0 5’000
For the Trinldadian Insurance subsidiaries:
Decrease/{increase) in market yields (£1%4) (196,297) 212,798 {181,152) 197 880

(&) Impairment losses on loans, receivables and other assets

The Uroup reviews its asset portfolios o nssess impairment on o periodic basis. In determining whether an impeirment loss should be recognized in the
caonsalidated income statement, the Group makes judpments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flaws from the underlying portfolios. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating bath the amount and timing af future
cash flows are reviewed regulurly to reduce any differences between loss cslimales and actual loss cxperience

() Income tuxes

The Croup is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Estimutes are required in determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. There
arc many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax desermination s uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes
liabilities: for anticipated tax audit izsues baged an estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax autcome of these mafters s
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impuet the income i und deferred tax provigions i the period in which such
determination s made.

(2) Held-to-maturity investments

The Group lollows the LAS 39 guideline on clossifying non-derivative finencinl wssets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed moturity dates us
held to maturity, This classification requires significamt judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates its intention and sbility 1o hold such
investments to maturity. IF the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances - for example, selling an
ingignificant amount close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire calegory. The vestments would therefore be measured nt fair value and
not amorbized gost. I the entire class of held to matunty invesiments i tuinted, the carmying value would inerease by 5314 million o5 of 31 December 2011
{ms ot 31 December 2010: increase of 5241 million) with 8 comesponding entry in the fair valoe reserve in sharcholders” funds.

{h} Impairment of non-financial assets

An impalrment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit excesds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
casis 1o sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell caloulation is based on ovailable dote from binding sules trinsactions in an arm's length
trunsachion of similar assets or observable market prices lesz incremental costs for disposing of the asser The value in use calculation is based on a
discounted euch flow model The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group iz
not yet commined o or significant furure investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the cash generating unil being tested, The recoverable
amaunt is most eensitive 1o the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used
for extrapalation purposes.

(i) Employee benefits
In conducting valuation exercises to measure the effect of all emploves benefit plans throughout the Group, the compeny's independent ecluarics dse

Jjudgement and assumptions n delermining discount rates, salary increases, pension increases and rates of roturn on the assts of the Plans. These are
detailed in Note 12 and Note 26,
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4. Manngement of insorance and finoncial risk

The Group is5ues contracts that wansfer insurenee risk or financial risk or both, This scction summernizes thess risks and the way the Group manages them

4.1 Insurance risk

Thie risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resultting claim. By the
very nature of un insurance contrect, this nisk 15 mndom and therefore unpredictable,

For a partfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability i applied 1o pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group faces under
its insurance contrecls @ that the actual claims and benelit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities, This could occur because the
frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated. Insurance evenis are random and the actual number end amount of clurms and
benefits will vary from year to year from the level established using searistical vechniques

Experience shows thet the lerger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability uboul the expected outcome will be, In
sddition, & more diversified portfolio s less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group hos developed its
insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks accepled and within each of these catepories to achieve a sufficiently large
papulation of risks 1o reduce the variability of the expected oulcome.

Factors that aggravate inswrance risk include lack of rsk diversification in terms of type and amount of risk, geographical location and type of industry
covered.

4.1.1 Casunlty insurance risks
(a) Frequency and severiy of claims

The frequency ond sevenily of clmms cuon be sffected by several foctors, The Group manages these risks through its underwnling stralegy, adequotls
reinsurance arrangemenis and proactive claims handling.

The underwriling strategy atlempts (o ensure that the underwritten nsks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of nsk, indusiry and geography.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriste risk selection eriterie. For example, the Group has the nght not to renew individual policies, i1 can
mpose deductibles and it has the right to rejeet the payment of a fraudulent clnim. Insurance cantracts also entitle the Grouwp to pursue third partics for
pavment of some or all cosis (subrogation).

The Group's reinsurance arrangements include non proportional excess of loss placements on a per clmmant and a per ocourrence basis.
(b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of Meture claim payments

Claims on casualty contracts are payable on a claims-occumence basis. The Group is liable for all insured events that occurred during the term of the
contract, even if the loss 15 discovered after the end of the contract term. As a result, linbility claims are senled over a long period of time and 1 large
element of the claims provision relates (o claims incurred bat not reported (TBNR), There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash
flaws from these contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks of the business activitics camied oul by individual contrisct holders and the risk
manugement procedures they adopled. The compensation paid on these contracts it the manetary awards granted for badily injury suffered by employess
{for employer's hability cover) or members of the public (for public Hability cover), Such awards are lump-sum payments that are calculated as the present
value of the lost eamnings and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur s o result of the aceident.

The csumaied cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in semling claims. The Group takes all reasonable steps 10 ensure thar it has
uppropnale information regarding its claims exposures, However, given the oncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final
outcome will prove to be different from the original lisbility established. The linbility for these coniracts comprises & provision for [BMR und ¢ provision
for reported claims not yet paid at the consolidated statement of financial position date.
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4, Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.1 Tnsurance risk (continued)
4.1.1 Casualty insurance risks (continued)
(b} Sources of uncermainry in the estimation of future ¢laim payments (continued)

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and IBNR), the Group estimation techniques are o combination of loss-ralio-based
estimates (where the loss ratio is defined us the rutio between the ultimate cost of insurance clalms and insurance premiums carmed in o particular
financial year in relation to such elaims) and un estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined formulae where greater weight is given
to actual claims experience as time pusses.

The initial loss-ratio estimels ks an important assumption in the estimation technique and is based on previous vears' experience, adjusted for factors such
&5 premiutn rite chunges, anticipated market experience and historical claims inflation.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertwinty then the cstimation of the cost of sentling claims already notified to the
Uroup, where information about the claim event is available. IBNR cleims may not be apparent to the insured until many years after the event that guve
rise to the claims has happened. For casualty contracts, the [BNR propartion of the total liahillty is high and will typically display greater variability
between initial estimates and final outcomes becouse of the greater degree of difficulty of estimating these ligbilities.

In estimating the Hability for the cost of reported claims net yet paid the Group considers any infarmation available from loss adjusters and information on
the cost of senling claims with similar characteristics in previous periods. Large claims are assessed on o cise-by-vase basis or projeeted scparmtely in
order to allow for the possible distorteve elfeet of their development and incidence an the rest of the portiolio,

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to estimate the required level of provisions. This provides a greater understanding of the trends
inherent in the experience being prajected. The projections given by the vunous methodologies alse assist in estimating the range of possible outcomes.
The must appropriate estimation technique is selected taking inlo account the characteristics of the business class and the extent of the development of
euch pcoident year,

Mote 23,2 presents the development of the estimate of ultimate cleim cost for claims notified in a given year, This gives an indication of the wecursey of
the Group's estimation technique for claims payments.

4.1.2 Shori duration life insurance contracts
(a) Frequency and severity of claims
Short-duration life insurance eontracts are contracts which are typically of o short tenure with the tenure being often determined by the length of an

ndividual's time in employment. These contracts are moinly issued to emplovers to insure their commitments to their employees. The nsk 18 affected by
the nature of the industry in which the employer operates, The risk of death and disability will vary by industry.

The Group attempts to manage this nsk through its underwriting and claims handling Additionally there is reinsurance on short-duration 1ife insurance
contracts. For the Jamaican life insurance subsidiary, there is concentration of risk in the services sector. Far the Trinidadian life insurance subsidiaries,
there is concentration of risk in the banking / finance sector and the retall / services sector.

(b} Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future elaim payments

There 15 o need to estimate mortadity rates or morbidity rates for future years because these contracts hove shorl 8 duration, However, for incurred
disability income claims, it is necessary to estimute the rates of recovery fram disability for future years, The group currently does to using conservative
assumplions,

(e} Changes in assumptions

The Group's assumptions in respect of short duration life insurance contracts have not changed from prior yeur,
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(Continued)

4. Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.1 Insurance risk (continued)

4.1.3 Property insurance contracls

() Frequency and severity of claims

For property insurance contracts, climatic chanpes give rite to more frequent and severe extreme weather events (for example, river flooding and
hurricencs) and their consequences (for example, subsidence claims). For certain contracts, the Group has also limited the number of claims that can be
paid in any policy year or introduced a maximum amount payable for claims in any policy year

The Group has the right 1o re-price the nsk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles and reject fraudulent claims. These contracts are
underwrillen by relerence to the commercial replacement value of the properties and contents insured, and claims payment limits are always included to
cop Lhe amount peyable on cccurrence of the insured event. The cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for contents and the time taken
le reslun operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims under these policies. The greutest likehhood of
significent losses on these contracts arises from storm or flood damage. Thee Group anelyses the property exposures using in-house end external modelling
tools and purchases sufficient reinsurance protection 1o cover its perceived labilitics.

The Group's reinsurange arringements imclude proportional quota share and surplus arrangements and non prapartional excess of loss placements ona per
claimant and a per ocourrence basis.

b1 Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of Tuture claim pavments

Property clurms ere unalyzed separatcly for subsidence and non-subsidence claims. The development of large losses/catastrophes is analyzed separately.
Non-subsidence claims can be estimated with greater reliability, and the Group estimation processes reflect all the factors that influence the gmount and
timing of cush flows from these contracts. The shorter sertlement period for these ¢laims allows the Group to achieve o higher degres of certainty about the

cstimated cost of claims, and relatively linle TBNR is held at year end. The longer time needed 1o assess the emergenee of o subsidence clam makes the
estimation process mare uncerain

4.1.4 Loog-term inyurance contracts
(a} Frequency and severity of clnims

For contracts where death is the insered risk, the maost significant factors that could increase the overall frequency of claims ore epidemmics (such us AIDS
or SARS) or wide spread changes in lifestyle, such as eating, smoking and exercise habits, resulting in earfier or more cluims than expected. For contracty
where survival is the insured risk, the most significant factor is continued improvement in medical seienee and sociel conditions that would increase
longevity.

Al present, these risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Group, However, undue concentration could huve an
impact en the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio hasis.

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms, there are no mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the insurance risk seoepted. For contracts, without
fied terms, u significant portion of the insurance risk is shared with the insured party. The Giroup charges for mortality risk on & monthly basis for most
life and critical insurance contracts without fixed terms, 1t ha the right 1o alter these charges based on its martality experience and hence minimize its
expasure to mortality risk,

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance wrungements. Medical selection is included in the Group's underwriting
procedures with premiums varied to reflect the health condition and family medical history of the applicants. The Group uses excess of loss reinsurance
centructs with retention limits thar vary by product,
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(Continued)

4. Management of insurance and lnuncinl risk (conlinued)

4.1 Insurance risk (continued)

4.1.4 Long-term insurance contracts (continued)

{2} Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

The table below presents the concentrotion of insured benefits across five bands per individual life essured. The benelit insured figures are shown gross
and net of the reinsurance contracts described above. These tables do not include annuity contracts, for which a sepurate analysis 15 reported further below,

For the Jamaican life insurance subsidiary:

Benefits assured per life

5000

JS1,000 - 5,000 (TT$70 - TT$350)
JE5,000 - 10,000 (TTE330 - TTS699)
1510,001 - 15,000 (TTS659- TTS1,045)
J$15.000 - 20,000 (TTS1.049 - TTH1.398)
J520,0010 and over (TT51,398 and over)

Total

The rigk is concentrated in the lower value bands. This has not chenged from last yvear,

Benefits assared per life

000

JS1,000 - 5,000 (TTST0 - TTS330)
185,001 - 10,000 (TTS150 - TTS65%)
1510,000 - 15,000 (TTH699- TTS,045)
JE15,001 - 20,000 (TTS1,049 - TTS1,398)
1520,001 and aver (TTS1,398 and over)

Total

For the Trinidadian life insurance subsidiaries:

Benefits assured per life
5'000
0-230(TTS)

250-500 (TTS)
500 -1,000 (TTS)

1,000 - 3,000 (TTS)
More than 3,000 (TTS)

Total

The risk i3 concentrated in the lower value bands, This has not changed from last year,

2011 - Total benefits insured

Before reinsurance After reinsuranee

TTS 000 Y TIS'000 %
11,934,753 87.2% 11,889,745 §2.3%
1,028,007 7.5% T80 0ok 6.1%
234 304 1.7% 107,977 0.8%
163,556 1.2% £4,520 0.4%
130,028 2.4% $3,760 4%
13,740, 648 100.0% 12 886,068 100.0%

2010 - Totnl benelits insured

Before reinsurance After relnsurance
TT5000 5% TT5'000 %
11,319,224 B7.9% 11,117,149 95.0%

Q30,873 7.2% 467,723 4.0%
211,663 | 6% G2 909 0.5%
126,334 1.0% 25,886 0.2%
293,894 3% 35843 0.3%
12,861,988 100.0% 11,709,510 100.0%

2011 - Total benefts Insured

Refore reinsurance After reinsurance

TTs000 e TS 000 %o
11,874,939 R20% 11259232 43.3%
3,890,398 10.5% 3,231,386 12.5%
10,403,168 28.2% 7158811 27.6%
B.435.437 22.9% 3,595,373 13.9%
2. 284,152 £.3% 688, 364 2.1%
_3&333__.2_91 100.0% 25933266 100.0%
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4, Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)
4.1 Insurance risk (continued)

4.1.4 Long-term insurance contracts (continued)

{a) Frequency and severity of claims {continued)

For the Trinidadian life insurance subsidiaries (continued);

Benefits assured per life
5000

0 - 250 (TTS)

250 - 500 (TT$)
500-1,000(TTS)

1,000 - 3,000 (TTS)
More than 3,000 (TT3)

Total

For the Dutch Caribbean lile insurance subsidiarics:

Benelts assured per life

£'000

NAFS0 - 500 (TTS0 - TTS1,769)

MAFS501 - 1,000 (TTS1,769 - TTS3,538)
MAFS1,001 - 1,500 (TTH3,538 - TTH5,307)
NAFS],501 - 2,000 (TT$5,307 - TT$7.075)
More than MAFS2,000 (TTS7,073)

Total

The risk is concentrated in the lower value bands. This has not changed from last year

Benefits assured per life

§°000

MAF30 - 300 (TT30 - TT31,76%)

NAFESO1 - 1,000 (TTS1,768 - TTS3,538)
NAFS1,001-1,500 (TT$3.538 - TTS5.307)
NAFS1.500 - 2,000 (TT$5.307 - TT$7.075)
More than NAFS2,000 (TT37,075)

Total

2010 - Total benefits insured

Before reinsurance After relnsurance

TTS'000 % TT5'000 "%
11,762,006 34.8% 11,100,144 50.5%
3,692,143 10.9% 2.988,253 13.7%
9,175,099 27.2% 5,639,947 25.8%
7.204.077 21.3% 1,948,069 §.9%
_l_,.9_35_t,552 58% 133,186 0.8%
33,765 B77 100.0% 21,840,599 100.0%

2011 - Total benefits insured

Before reinsurance Aller reinsurince
TTS'000 Y TTS"000 ]
2457969 §7.9% 2 360,969 97 6%

210,061 7.5% 43,547 2.0%
74488 2.7% 8512 0.4%
28,547 1045 - 0.0%%
25,942 09% - 0.0%

2,797,007 100.0% 418,028 1040, 0%

2010 - Total benefits insured

Before relnsurance After reinsurance
TTS' 0 Y TTS'000 %
2,378,682 87.7% 2,303,725 97.9%
198,062 7.3% 42,516 1.8%
81890 108 8.184 0.3%
23,077 0.9% - 0.0%%
28 502 1.1% - 0.0%
Zt‘J'IEI',Iﬂ 100.0% 2,354,425 100, 0%

The following tables for annuity insurance contracts iflustrate the concentration of risk based on five bands that group these contracts in relation o the
emount peyeble per annum as if the annuity were in payment at the year end. The Group does not hold any reinsurance contracts against the liabilities

carmied for these contracts.

Insurance risk for contracts disclosed in this note is elso affected by the contract holders’ right to pay reduced or na future premiums, to terminate the
contract completely, or 1o exercise o guaranieed ennuity option. As u result, the amount of insurance rizk is also subject 1a contract holder behaviour
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4. Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.1 Insurance risk {continued)

4.14 Loog-term insurunce contructs (conlinued)

(a) Frequency and severity of claims (continued)

For the Jamaican [ife iniurance subsidiary:
Total annuities payable per anoum

t 2010
TTE'N00 U TTS'000 %

Annuity payable per annum per life

5000

J5 0 - 200,000 (TTS0 - TTS13.980) 41,897 30.3% 32,480 3.0
JS200,001 - 300,000 (TT$13,980 - TTS20,970) [7.2009 12.4% 14,930 14.3%
J5300,001 - 400,000 (TTS20,570 - TTS27.940) 11,048 B.0% B.145 7.8%
JS400,001 - 500,000 (TT$27,960 - TT$34,950) 2336 6. 7% 6577 6 3%
More than J$500,000 (More then TT334,950) 59,050 a26% 42,433 40.6%
Tatal 138,540 100.0% 104,565 100, 0%

The greatest risk congentration remuins ol the highest band and lawest band which is consistent with the prior year.

For the Trinidudian lile insurance subsidiaries:
Total annulties pavable per annum

Annuity payable per annom per life 011 010

000 TT5'000 % TTS'000 %
0 -5.000(TTS) 6,136 7.3% 6.057 1.7%
5,001 - 10,000 (TTS) 20,926 25.0% 10,800 13.9%
10,000 - 20,000 (TTS) 12,399 14.8% 19,172 24.6%
More than 20,000 (TT$) 41310 529% 41,897 53.8%
Total 83,771 1 00.0% 77,926 100.0%

The grealest concentration remains at the highest band, which is consistent with the prior year,
Far the Dutch Caribbean lile insurance subsidiaries:

Tatal annuities payvable per annum

w1 2010
TTS'000 k1 TTS'000 e

Annuity pavable per annum per life

57000

MAFS0 - 10 (TTH0-TT$35) 1,573 12.0% 1,515 11.1%
NAFS11-20 (TTS35-TTST71) 2,993 22.8% 2,705 19.7%%
MAFSZ] - 30 (TTS71 - TTE106) 2208 16.9% 2412 17.6%
MAFS3] - 40 (TTS106 - TTS142) 2,538 19.4% 1,756 20.1%
MNAFS41 - S0 (TTS142 - TTS17T) 1,294 9.%% 1,283 94%
More then NAFS30 (More than TTS177) 2484 19.0% 3038 22. 1%
Total 13,050 1 00.0% 13,709 100.0%

Thie risk is spread over all the bands which is consisten! with the prior year,
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d. Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.1 Insurance risk (continued)

4.1.4 Long-term insurnnce contracts (continued)

(b} Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium recelpts

Uncertainty i the cstimation of future benefit pryments end premium reeeipls for long-term insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-
term changes in overall levels of mortality and the variability in contract holder behaviour.

The Group uses approprinte base tables of standard mortality according to the type of contract being written and the territory In which the insured person
resided, An mvestigation into the aelunl experience for the Group 5 carried oul periodically, and the results compared to that wed in the palicyholder
liability and valuc to sharcholders of mforce long-lerm business fgures, Mo adjustment for future mortality improvements is made for contracts tha
msure survival,

(¢} Process used to decide on assumptions

For long term msurance contracls, the Group determines assomplions in relution to future deaths, voluntary termination, investment returns, administrative
expenses and other itema that are appropriate (o the policies, their location and the local stetutory reserving requirements, In the case of Jomaicy, the
pssumptlions are best cstimate assumptions with eppropriste provisions for adverse devintions, consistent with the vse of o Policy Premium Method
veluation. For other territories, the assumptions used are those appropriate for tradivonal net premium valuetion methods,

The assumptions uscd for the insurance contracts disclosed in this note arc ax follows:

L Muortality

An pppropriate base table of standard mortality 15 chosen depending on the type of contract. For contracts insuring survivorship, no
wllowunce is made for future mortality improvernents.

Morbidity
Estimates of the future incidence of eritical iflngss is made using the reinsurancea terms available o the Group as a guide.

. Persistency

An investigation into the Group®s experience is performed 10 determing an appropriate persistency rate. Persistency rates vary by product type
and policy duration.

L Investment returns
The Group sets the investment return assumption based on the total expected retumn available an suitable investment asset classes,

L] Renewal expense level and inflation
The current level of expenses is taken a5 an appropriate expenss base with allowance for future expense inflation

" Tax
It has been assumed that current tax legislation and rates for long-term insurance companies continue unaltered.

201 2010
() Change in assumplions #1000 5000

L] Determination of Habilities:

For the Jamgican life insurance subsidiary:

Changes in expense assumptions 1,633 (189.006)
Changes in lapse assumptions 2228 -

Changes in investment retums (8,051) 207,867

Other sssumptions {30,794} 632
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{Continued)

4. Management of insurance and fnancial risk (continued)

4.1 Insurance risk (continued)

4.1.4 Long-term insurance contracts {continued)

(d) Chanpe in assumptions {continued)

For the Trinidadian life insurance subsidiaries:
Mo changes have been made to the assumptions used to determine the valee of lang-term insurance liahilities

For the Dutch Caribbean insurance subsidinries:
Mo changes have been made to the assumptions used to determine the value of long-term insurance lahilities

() Sensitivity nnalysis

The lollowing tables present the sensitivity of the value of msurance liabilitics disclosed in this note to mavements in the assumptions used in the
eytimation of insurance liakilities.

Long-term Insurance eontracts with fixed and guaraniced terms and without DPF;

Changein ~ Change in Change in  Change in

variable linbility varizble liakilicy
2011 2011 2010 mnin

Vartable S'000 £000
For the Jamaican life insurunce subsidiary;
Worsening of momality + 10.0% 66,995 +10.0% 46,861
Lowering of investment retums -2.0% 446,471 - 2.0% 351,228
Worsening of base renewal expense level +30% 25528 + 5.0% 30,648
Worsening of expense inflation rate +1.0% 75,320 +1.0% 102,250
For the Trinidadian life insurance subsidinries:
Warsening of mortality +L.0% 1,343 + L0% 1,256
Improvement of ennuitant mortality + 5.0% 16,032 +5.0% 14,035
Lowering of investment refurmns - 1.0%% 73,607 = |.0% 69,565
Warsening of hage renewal expense level +5.0% 34 +5.0% 257
Worsening of expense inllution rate +1.0% GR0 +1.0% T84
For the Dutch Caribbean life insurance subsidiaries:
Warsening of martality + 10,0% 46,475 +10.0% 43,649
Improverment of annuitent mortality i 10.0% 4,441 + 10.0% 3,703
Long-term insurance contracts with lixed and guaranteed terms and with DPF;
Variable
For the Jamalcan life insurance subsidiary;
Waorsening of mortality + (0% 260 + 10.0% 213
Lowering of investment relurns -2.0% 3,085 -2.0% 2,903
Warsening of basis renewal expense level b 5.0% B65 +5.0% 96
Worsening of expense inflation + 1.0% 991 +1.0% 1,302
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{Continued)

4. Management of insurance and financial risk (continuad)

4.1 Insurance risk {continued)

4.1.4 Lang-term insurance contracts (continued)

(&) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Change in Change in Change in Change in

virinble liability variable liakility
Variable 2011 2011 2010 Wi
£"000 5000

For the Dutch Caribbenn lile insurunce subsidiaries:
Worsening of mortality +10.0% 12,026 + 10.0% 11,447

The ubove unulyses wre bescd on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in
somie of the assumptions may be comelated.

4.2 Finnncial risk

The Ciroup 15 exposed (o financial risk through its financial assets, financinl linbilities {mvestment contrects and borrowings), reinsurance assets and
insurenee libilities. In particular the key financial risk is that the proveeds from its financial asscts are not sufficient to fund the obligations arising from
its msurance and investment contraces. The components of this financial nisk ere interest rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk. These rigks arise from open positions in interest rate, ourrency end equity products, all of which are exposed to peneral and specific
markel mMovements.

Risk management 15 cemed out by Executive Investment Committees and Actuariol departmenis of operating units under policies approved by the
Group's board of dircctors, The Oroup identifies, evaluates and hedges financinl risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating units. The board
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
investment of cxcess liquidiy.

4.2.1 Murkei risk

Musket rizk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financinl instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk - currency rigk, interest rate risk and other price risk each of which are considered below

(a) Currency risk

The Graup takes an expasure to effects of Nuctuations in the prevailing fareign currency mtes on its financinl position and cash flows. The Group has
operatione in the Caribbean as well as operutions st Lioyd's which underwrites risks on a worldwide basis. The main exposure to risks are in Tespeet o the
US dollar, Antillean Guilder, Jamuican doller and the Sterling. The Group's strategy for dealing with foreign exchange risk is to offsel o3 far as possible
farelgn currency labilities with assels denomineted in the same currency

Each subsidinry hus an Executive Investment Cammittee which has oversight for the menugement of currency risk. The Trinidad insurance subsidiaries’
exposure lo currency nsk 15 also mitigated by the requirements of the Insurance Act 1980, which does not allow more than 20% of the assets supporting
policyholder linbilitices to be held in currencies other then the currency of the linkility.

The tables below summurizes the Group’s exposure to fareign currency exchange rate risk as at 31 December. The Group's assets and lishilities at carrying
amounts are included in the teble categorized by currency positions expressed in TTS equivalents

T us MNAF MDD GEBP Eurp Other Total
000 5000 $°000 51000 5000 5000 5000 5000

As ot 31 December 2011
Totul nssets 6,582,172 4,168,322 3,304,850 4,062,334 1,646,073 1,271,883 266,963 21,502,617
Total liabilities _ 7,752,851 1,583,979 _ 3675127 _ 2797383 1,597,386 329,019 S72.801 18308346
(1,170,479 2,584,343 (170277 £64,971 48,687 542,864 204162 3,194.271
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(Continued)

4, Manugemenl of insurance and fnancial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continued)

4.2.1 Market risk (continued)

{u) Currency risk {continued)

1T Us NAF JMD GRP Eure Other Total
5'000 5000 000 $1000 S0 S 000 £°000 £'000

As at 31 December 2010
Tootal assets 6,064,631 4,204,188 3,184,527 3,397,189 2,261,019 1,108,797 TET 443 20,987,795
Total liabilities 7,086,002 1,394,823 3745964 2,602,643 _ 2,220.965 303,264 503,810 _17,857.471
{1.021,371) 2,809,366 (581,437) 794,546 40,054 B0S,533 283,633 3,130,324

The analysis below is performed for reasonable possible movemenis in foreign currency exchange rates with all other variobles held constant, showing the

impact on the consolidated Income statement and equity at the reporting date.

Change in variahles us MNAF JMD GBP Euro Other
2011 -0,2% 0.2% 0.%%% 16.0% 6.6% -6.8% 10 1.8%
2010 1.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 5.0% 1.0%
us NAF JMD GHEP Euro Dther Total
LA 5000 1000 000 1000 £'000 £'000
Imnact on income statement
2011 1112 - 64 12120 51213 a0 42 357
2010 14 (1.5411 152 (5.729% B311 1.288 3.395
Impact on equity
011 10691 (53T B.687 14.793 £.298 (2.993) 39837
2010 20520 17.135 17473 4 989 1.791 1.470 63.379

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group is expased to various risks associated with the effects of Auctuations in the prevailing levels of markes intereat rates on its financial position
und cash flows. The major element of interest rate risk within the Group is the risk that the interest eamned on the Group's Investments is insufficient o
mmeet the interest rates credited or guaranteed to policyholders, This applies to traditional 1ife insarance palicies and the deposit administration plans.

Exposure is managed largely by the use of notural hedges that arise by matehing interest sensitive nssets with liabilities of a similar nature, The Group alsa
mitigates the effect of interest rete nsk of the investment portfolio through the functioning of an Execulive Investment Committee and the pricing of
products by the actuerial function. The invesiment porifolio retum is continually menitored by the Investment Committee, The restlts of these reviews
infarm the pricing of products and interest rutes (o be credited to the respective policies and plans,

The sensitivity analysis for interest rate nisk illusteates bow changes in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate hecause of
changes in markel inlerest mtes o the reporting date. For the sensilivity analyses, o 1% movement in interest riles was used for 2011 for the Trinidad
market (2000: 1%), a 2% movement was used for 2011 for the Jamaica market (2010: 2%6) and a 0.1% movement for 2011 was used for the Dutch
Caribbean (20100 1%) The effect of an Increase in the above rates would result in a decrease in the consolidated Income statement and equity of
£183.925,000 for 2011 (2010; decrease of $145.895,000), The effect of o decrease in the above rates would resuft in an increase in the consolidated
income staternent and equity of $175,487,000 for 2011 (2010: increase of $144,456,000),

(e} Other price risk

Price risk is the risk that the valee of a financial instrument will Nuctuate as a result of changes in marke! prices, whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the murkel. The Group is exposed 1o equity securities
price risk because of investments held by the Group end clessified on the consolideted staterment of financiel position as (i value through profil or loss,
The Group menages its price risk by limiting the amouent of ils investments in equitics und by monilering movemenls in equily prices,
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{Continued)

4, Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continueed)

4.2.1 Market risk {continued)
{€) Other price risk {continued)

The sensitivity analysis for equity price risk illustrates how changes in the fair value of equity securitics will fluctunte because of changes in murket prices
#t the reporting date. For the sensitivity analyzis, an 8% movement in prices of local equities was used for 2011 for the Trinided market (2010: 8%), s 10%
mavement in prices of local equities was used for 2011 for the Jamaica market (2010: 10%) and a 0.06% movement for 2011 was used for Dutch
Caribbhean (2010: 1%%) . The effect of an increase/decreate in the above rates would result in an increasefdecrease in the coneolidated income statement
and equity of §30,372,000 for 2011 (2000 $121,158,000).

4.2.2 Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due, at a reasonable cost. Prudent liquidity risk management implics
maintaining sufficicnt cash and marketable sccuritics, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commitied credit facilities, and the ability
1o close our maerket positions.

Certain of the Group's contracts have features that allow them to be terminated at shor notice creating a potential liquidity exposure. The Group monitors
liguidity on & regular basis. An intemally constituted Executive [nvestment Committes sel limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available
to meet such calls and on the minimum level of borrowing facilities that sheuld be in place to cover claims,

There are no individual contracts or policyhalders wha have the potential to influence the withdrawal of a significant amount of linhilities.

The following tables analyze the insurance and financial liahilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining perind, at
consolidated statement of financial position date, to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are at contractusl undiscounted cash
Tows with the exception of insurance controcts and investment contracts which wre ol expecied undiscounted cush fows,

Undiscounted cash Nows

Carrying Mo stated Less than One - five Owver
amount maturity one year Years five years
As at 31 December 2011 51000 5000 5000 51000 5000
Insurance and financial linbilities
Long-term insurance contracts 9,563,910 1,712,485 420,955 2310933 14,938,283
Short-term insurance contracts 2,046,205 - 1,450,019 379,073 17,110
Investment contracts 1,538,945 1,507,137 31,808 - v
Medium term bomowings |, 286,994 - 108,124 801,417 1,176,047
Short-ierm bormowings 75,803 - 77.491 - -
Drerdvative financial instruments 31,040 - - 31,040 -
Third party interests in mutual funds 1,085,343 1,085 343 - - -
Interest payable 32,743 - 32,743 - -
Cther linbilities 231,191 61,931 602,875 166,285 -
Sepregated fundz’ liahilitles 490 502 337915 b,504 10,943 94,140
Tatal 16,991 676 4,754,811 2,730,619 3,899,691 16,225,580
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Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars
(Continuzd)

4. Management of insurance and Anancial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continued)

4.2.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2010

Insurance and Minanclal labilities
Long-lerm insurince contracts
Short-term imsurmee contracts
Investiment contracts

Medium term borrowings
Short-term borrowings

Denvative financial instruments
Third party interests In mutual funds
Interest payable

Other liabilities

Segrepated funds” liabilities

Tatal

4.2.3 Credit risk

Undiscounted cash Mows
Carrying No stated Less than One - five Over
nmouni mufurity one year Years five years
£'000 £'000 5000 7000 000
& 802 539 | 635,286 386,265 2127216 13,525 861
3,651,224 - 2,507,843 1,126,314 17,066
1,455,180 1,432.925 22,255 - -
1,151,680 - 360,880 1,000,825 -
89,841 - 90.523 - _
24,856 - - 24,856 -
1065548 1,065,548 - - =
B, 175 - 8,175 - -
758,835 64,454 604,381 - -
459.937 459,038 91 698 110
17467815 4 557251 4,070,413 4,359,909 13,543,037

Credit rizk is defined as the potential for loss that can occur as a result of an individual, counterparty or issuer being unable or unwilling to honour s
contractunl obligations to us. Each subsidiary in the various jurisdictions, has an Executive Investment Commines (EIC) that sets eredit limits and
monilors exposure by constraining the magnitude and tenor of the exposure 1o counterparties and issuers. Some of the credit risk mitigation technigues
include, where sppropriate, the right to require mitial collateral or margmn, the mght 1o terminate transactions or (o obtam collateral (incleding guarantees)
should unfavorable evenis occur. The EIC initiates regular portfalio reviews, monitars counterparty creditworthiness, and evaluates potential transactian

risks with » view 1owards early problem idemtification and protection ngninst unecceptable credii-relued losses,

The Group actively monitors the financial status of its relnsurers both by reference to publicly available information and the Financial Strength Ratings of
AM. Best. All of the Group’s reinsusers are rated superior by A M Best A mating of superior is assigned 10 reinsurance companies that have, in the
opinion of AM. Best, o supenor ability (o meet their ongoing obligntions to the primary insurer.

() Assets bearing credit risk

Below is an analysis of assets bearing credit risk

As at 31 December 2011

Debt securitics

Financial aecets of mutual fund unit holders

Deposits with finencial institutions (more than 90 days)
Oither financinl assets

[mterest reeevable

Loans and receivahles

Reinsurance assets

Drefermed acqmsition costs

Cash and eash squivalents

Meither Fast due

past due but not
nor impaired impaired Impaired Total
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
8,788,064 11,567 111 R801,542
1,052,875 - 6,250 1,059,125
1,153,164 17,325 2548 1,173,037
52,616 - - 51616
250,455 1,075 = 251,510
1,314,009 33,397 57,633 1,405,039
680,273 - - 680,273
72,657 - - T2.657
1,878,336 22,108 - 1,900,444
15,242 449 E5.472 68,342 15,396,263
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{Continued}

4, Management of insurance and Msancial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk {continued)

4.2.3 Credit risk (contmued)

(a) Assets bearing credit risk (continued)

Meither Past due

past due but not
nor impaired impaired Impaired Total
50400 500 5000 5000

As at 31 December 2010

Deht escurities 9,106,671 10,556 268 9,117,495
Financial assets of mutual fund unit holders 1,096,113 - - 1.096,113
Depasits with financial institutions (more than 50 days) 52,881 6,619 2,541 862,041
Other financial assets 47423 - - 47 423
Interedt receivable 238,326 1,609 - 230935
Loans and receivables 1,900.208 67.297 78,133 2,045,638
Reinsurance assets 761,614 - - 761,614
Deferred nequisition costs 369,623 - - 369,623
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,625,938 - = 1635934
15,998,797 86,081 B0 942 16,165,820

(b) Credit quality of assets

The credit quality of financial ass¢ts that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference o external credit ratings if available or to a rating
ussigned by Lhe investmenl maneger using un approach consisient with that used by Standard and Poor's. The table below provides information regarding
the credit risk exposure of the Group by classifying assets according to the Standard & Poor’s credit mting methodology.

AMA
An obligation rated "AAA" has the highest rating assigned by Standard & Poor's. The ohligar's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the
obligation is sxtremely strong,

AA

An obligation rated “AA" differs from the highest-roted obligations only to o small degree. The obligor’s capecity to mest s finenoiol commitment is very
strong.

A
An pbligation mied “A' 5 somewhal more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumsiances and econemic conditions than obligations in
higher-raled categones. However, the obligor’s capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.

EBR
An obligation rated "BHB' exhibit adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to
lead to 8 weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

Below
Obligations rated *Below BRA' are reparded as having significant speculative characteristics. While such obligations will likely have some quality and
protective chamcteristics, these may be outweighed by large unceriaintics or mejor exposures to adverse conditions.

Mot Rated
This indicates that there is insufficient information on which to base a rating. These balances are current and are monitored regularly for impairment. This

classification includes obligutions due from individualy, short term securitics and receivables aricing under contracts of insurance underwritten in the
international praperty and casualty business of the Group

The concentration of credit risk is substuntially unchanged compared to prior year,
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(Cantinued)

4, Muanagement of insurunce and financial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (contmucd)

4.2.3 Credit risk (continued)

(b} Credit quality of assets (conlinued)

Asat 3] December 2011

Dbt secuntics

Finencial asses of mutual fund
unitholders

Deposits with financinl institulions
{more than 90 daya)

(nher Minancial assets

Interest receivable

Louns und receivables

Reinsurance assets

Deferred acquisition costs

Cash and cash equivalents

Az at 31 December 2010

Diebt securities

Financial assets of mutua! fund
unithelders

Depasits with financial institutions
[more than 90 days)

Other financial assets

Interest receivahle

Loans and receivables

Remsurance wssely

Deferred acquisition costs

Cash and cash equivalents

{e) Assets that are pust due but not impaired

As at 31 December 2001
Dbl securities

Deposits with finzncial institutions (more than 90 days)

Interest receivable
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Totul

AAA AA A BEE Below BEB Not Raled 2011
000 5000 £000 5000 5000 5000 $'000
966661 T1.664 4. 563904 §17.908 2.249.253 18.674 8.783.064
6,304 - 594,118 296,795 153,635 - 1,052,875

- 27,000 14,172 456217 146,677 9,093 1,153,164

- 4,483 5,935 14,151 - 28,047 52,616

11,396 1,203 158,516 14,020 64,620 T00 250,455
- 22,893 628,719 38801 850 622,746 1,314,009

- - 640,243 - - 40,030 680,273

- - 21,3%6 - - 51,261 T2657

- 160,884 693,692 175472 240660 602,628  1.878.338
084,361 288,027 8225695 1513367  2.857.71% LI73,084 15242449
1,344,557 208,042 4,944 694 454 564 2,148 B4l 5.553 9,106,671
- - 612,535 191,692 29], 586 - 1.096,113

= - 547,253 126,148 158,104 18,376 851,88

- 5048 9.925 2,667 22,9582 6,801 47423
18.341 2,290 142.54% 9382 64,433 231 238,326
- 1,426 636,262 19,863 1,769 1,240,858 1.900.208

- - 723,114 - - 38,500 761,614

- - 14,727 - - 354 896 368 623

- 118,854 478,332 374,841 107,216 546,555 1,625,038
1,362,898 335,70 B.109.79] 1,182,657 2,735,251 2212,500 15,998 797

Carryving value 5000
Between 3 Between 6 Between 9

Less than 3 and & and 9 and 12 Mure than

months manths manths manths 12 months

7423 1,853 437 17 1,837

7,854 5,632 3,208 - 0]

275 423 191 - 186
0,773 1.708 1.303 &0 {98T)

22,108 = - - -

68,463 G616 5,139 617 1,637
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(Continued)

4. Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continued)

4.2.3 Credit risk (continued)

() Assets that are past doe bul not impaired (continusd)

As at 31 December 2010
[ebt secunties

Cther financial assets
Interest receivable

Loans and receivables

Carrying value 3000

(d) Collateral held in respect of assets that are past due but not impaired

Loans and receivahles

() Financial assets that are impaired

Dbt securitics

Depasits with financial institutions {more than 90 days)
Louns und recsivables

Financial assets of mutual fund unit holders

(1) Allowance for impairment

Balance at 1 January 2011

Exchange differences

Provision for loen impairment

Amounts written off during the year ac uncollectible
Amounts recovered during the year

Balance nt 31 December 2011

Between 3 Retween b Between 9
Less than 3 and 6 and 9 and 12 More than
manths maonths manths manths 12 months
8218 1.313 - - 1,025
3,509 §98 1,812 - -
401 17 134 = 1,037
56,553 (359) 5,095 6,231 (213}
69,081 1,589 T.041 6,231 1,83%
Fair value of collateral held
2011 2010
5000 5000
1,430 1,430
1,430 1,430
Carrying value
2011 2010
S 00 5000
1,911 268
2,548 2.54]
57,633 78.133
6,250 -
68,342 80,942
Premiums
and  Other lonns
reinsurnnce and Financial
receivables  receivables assels Tatal
5000 57000 $'000 S 000
6,642 5,147 2,809 74,598
136 282 6 424
(16,423) - 559 (15,834)
[16,698) (4,503) - 21,3013
(183) - o (183)
33,474 826 3,404 37,704
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(Contmued)

4, Management of insurance and financial risk (continued)
4.2 Financial risk (contimued)

4.2.3 Credit risk {continued)

(N Allowance for impairment {continued)

Bulunce ut 1 Junuary 2010

Exchange diffcrences

Proviston for loan impairment

Amaunts written ofT during the year s uncollectible
Amounts recovered during the year

Balance at 31 December 2010

(¢) Concentrations of risks of Mnancial assets with eredit risk exposure

Premiums
and Other loans
reinsurance wnd Financial
recelvables  recelvables aysels Total
$000 5000 £'000 S 000
39,945 3918 2540 46410
3s 16 (&) 362
27,401 3.737 269 31,407
(271} {74) - [I_m.‘i}
(86) {2,450) - (2,536)
6,642 5,147 2,800 74,598

The following iable breaks down the Group's main credit risk exposure af their camying amounts, as catcgonzed by the industry sectors of counterparties.

Financlal Manu- Wholesale & Puohlic Other
Institutions fuctoring  Real estate  retuil trade seclor industries  Individuals Toral
£'000 5'000 5000 5000 5000 5'000 5000 5000
As at 3] December 2011
Debt securities 787.102 41.054 5214 24.471 6941766 92n,114 5.52] B.BDL.542
Financial asscts of
mutual fund unitholders 333,719 - 34,127 8972 549 534 132,771 - 1,059,125
Deposits with finencial
institutions 1,171,038 - - - 1,599 - - 1,173,037
Other financiel msets - = - - - 52,618 . 52,616
Interest receivahble 04,509 169 58 248 145233 11,090 222 251.530
Loans and receivables 9,035 - 216,763 - 30,064 815,765 333412 1,405,039
Heinsurance nssels - - - - - 680.273 - 680.273
Deferred acaulsition costs - = 72.657 - 72.657
Cash and
cash equivalents 1,747 844 - 52,554 = 100,043 i - 1,900,444
4,143 247 41,223 08,716 33,697 7,768,641 2,761,284 130455 15,396,263
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinided and Tobago Dollars
{Continued)

4, Management of insurnnce nnd finuncial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continwed)

4.2.3 Credit risk (continued)

(g) Concentrations of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposore (continued)

Flnanclal Manu- Wholesale & Public Other
Institutions facturing  Real estate  retail trade sector industries  Individuals Taotal
000 5000 §'000 5000 5000 5000 1000 §°000
Asg at 31 December 2010
Debi securitics 1.135.005 50,937 - 26,158 6.635.257 1.229.045 40.893 9.117.455
Financial assets of
mutual fund unil holders 311,693 = 16,095 5,084 692,774 10,466 - 1,096,113
Deposits with financial
instinutions 679,157 - - - 182,884 - - £62,041
Other financial assers 7.218 - 74 2,667 37464 - 47.423
Interest receivable 75,803 259 - 381 143.743 13.594 54853 239.935
Loans and receivobics 8,230 - 223,760 - 26,380 1,492,014 345,474 2,056,858
Reinsurance atsels - - - - - Tal.614 - T6al.a14
Deferred acquisition costs - - - - - 369,623 - 369,623
Cash and
cash cquivalents 1,625,938 - - - = - - 1,625938
3,836 826 58,414 239,856 31,897 7,683,707 3974120 392220 16.217,040
4.2.4 Capital management
The Group's ohjectives when managing capital are:
. 1o cegmply with the capital requirements required by the regulutors of the markets where the Group operates;
L] to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern o that it ¢an continue to provide rerums for sharehalders and benefits for
other stakehalders; and
L] to pravide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance and investment contracts commensurately with the level of risk.

In cach country inwhich the Group operates, the local insurance regulator indicates the required minimum amount and type of capital that must be held by
each of the subsidiaries in addition to their insurance lishilities and the Group is subject to insurance solvency regulations in all the territories in which it
issues ingurance contracts. The minimum required capital must be maintained a1 all times throughout the year, The Group i$ subject 1o insurance solvency
regulations in all the territories in which it issues insurance and investment contracts

The table below summarnizes the minimum required capital across the mun temitonies in the Group. The Group has complicd with these minimum capital
requirements, These figures are an pggregoic number, being the sum of the stanutory capital and surplug for each insurance subsidiary in each country
subjeet lo focul regulatory requirements, which may differ from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

Guardian
General Dutch
Guardian Insurance Jamaica life Trinidad life Carihbean
Re (SAC)  Ltd and Is insurance insurance insurance
Limited subsidiaries company  companies companies Group
5000 5'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000
2011
Mimimum regulatory capital 119,714 122,870 204,783 621,144 189,685 1,258,196
2010
Minimum regulatory capilal 122,306 167,592 184,279 §35,958 222,519 1,252,654
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(Continued)

4, Management of insurance and foancial risk (continued)

4.2 Financial risk (continued)

4.2.4 Capital management (continued)

The Trimidadien assel management subgidiary holds a license under the Financial Instinutions Act 2008 and as such the subsidiary is required to have a
minimum peid up share capital af 515 million. Also the Act requires the subsidiary to transfer a minimum of 10% of its profit after tax 1o a Statutory
Reserve Fund until the balance in the Fund iz not less than the paid up capital of the subsidiary as well as the subsidiary’s qualifying capital shall be no
less than 8% of us nsk adjusted assets. The subsidiary has compliad with thess requirements.

5. Property, plant and equipment

Year ended 31 December 2011

Opening net boak amount

Exchange rate adjustments

Revalustion surplus

Additions

Digposals and adjustments

Transfer from investment property (Mote 6)
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

Al 3 December 2011
Cost or voluation
Accumulated depreciation

Closing net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2010

Opening net book amount

Exchange rate adjustments

Revoluation surplus

Additions

Dizposale and adjustments

Disposol of subsidiory

Transfers

Transfer from investment property (Nole &)
Depreciation churge

Closing net ook amount
At 3] December 2010
Cost or valuation

Accumnulated deprecintion

Closing net book amount

Freehold Office
and Furniture
Leasehald and Muotor Wark in
Froperties  Equipment Vehicles Progress Totul
ST000 5000 51000 51000 S000
397,621 102,085 0.627 411 300,744
1,971 a6 256 - 2,293
1,920 - 1,920
4,709 21,705 4,948 1,249 32,609
(h (765} (662) {2} (1,430
4414 - - - 4,414
o A3peEy  (31614) (3,633) = (44,273)
398,606 90477 10,534 | 658 301,275
440,044 402,118 22.784 1.658 866,604
_ [21.438) (311,641) {12,250) - (365,329
393,606 90,477 10,534 1,658 501,275
189,406 105,123 9.034 5,081 508,644
3,018 B58 115 19 4,010
1.376 - - -~ 1,376
11,885 238,604 5381 136 46,106
[3.475) (158 (1.811) = (5.445)
2,837 2,088 - (4,925) =
3,180 - - - 3,180
(10,606} (34.429) (3.092) - [#8127)
397,621 162 085 § 627 411 509,744
429,147 182,156 20,486 411 832,200
{31,526} (2E0,071) (10,859) [322.456)
397621 102,085 9,627 411 509,744
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&, Property, plant and equipment {continued)

The following are the dutes of the lest valuations of land wnd buildings in the Group:

Guardian Life of the Caribbenan Limited - December 2011
Bencassurance Cenbbean Limisted . December 2011
Guardian Life Limiled - Drecember 2011
Fatum Holding NV - December 2011
Guardian General Insurance Limited - December 201 |
Guardian Shared Services Limited = December 2011

Yaluations were made on the basis of open market value by external independent valuators.
Depreciation expense of 548,275,000 (2010 - 548,127,000) has been charged in operating cxpenses.

If frechold end leaschold propertics were stated on & historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

2011 20010
£'000 S'000
Cost 329,923 330,753
Accumulated depreciation (48,0100 {38,062)
Net book amount 281913 202691
6. Investment propertics
Balance at beginning of year 905,507 211,221
Exchange rate adjustments {160) (28.970)
Additionz 200,376 40,156
Fair value gains/{losses) (Mote 33) 23088 (£.945)
Disposals (1.466) =
Re-classification to fixed assets (Note 5) (4.414) (3,180)
Fair value adjustments directly related 1o the unit finked funds (3,500} {4,775)
Balance at end of year 1,120,431 905,507
Rental Income 29 805 28474
Direct operating expenses incurred in respect of investment property
that generated rental income during the penod 2.974 2,139
7. Intnngible usscis
Goodwill Oiher Total
5000 5'000 s'on0
Year ended 31 December 20011
Balance ot beginning of year 251 434 2.048 253,484
Exchange rate adjustments - (1) (11)
Additions = 1846 1,846
Amortization - (1,041} (hoa1)
Balance ot end of year 251,436 2,842 254,278
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(Continued)

7. Intangible nssels (continued)

Goodwill Other Tatal
£000 000 §'000

Ar 3] December 2011
Cost 251,436 16,329 267,765
Accumulated amortization - (13,487) (13.487)
Met book value 251,438 2842 254,278
Year ended 31 December 2010
Ralance at beginning of year 254,330 15,902 270,232
Exchange rate adjustments - &50 &30
Additions - 1,632 1,632
Disposal (2,594} (12.981) {15.875)
Amortization = (3.155) ___ (3.155)
Balance ot end of vear 251,436 2,048 253 484
Al 31 December 2010
Cost 251,436 14,480 263916
Accumulated amortization = {12,432) (12,432)
Net book value 251,438 2,048 253,484

Other intangible assets represent brand costs, computer software costs and website development costs

Goodwill iz assigned to the Group’s cash generating unit an scquisition. In sccordance with IFRS 3, all assets that gave fse 1o goodwill were reviewed for

impairment a1 vear end uging the ‘value in use” method In each case, the cash flow projections mre based on finencial budgets approved by senior
management covering a five yvear periad.

A summary of the goodwill for ench cash-genernting unit & presented below:

2011 2010
5000 5000
Guordian Cenerel Insurance Limited 97,459 97,4359
Guardian Insurance Limited 153,977 153,977

251,436 231,436

For Guardian Insurance Limited and Guardian General Insurance Limited, a discount rate of 13% and 12.6%4 respectively was used. A cash flow
projection term of 3 years was used for both and the growth rate used was 0%. In addition the values assigned to key assumptions reflect past performance.
Bused on the results of this review, no impuirrment expense wes reguired for goodwll.

2011 2010
. Investment in associated companies 5000 S'000
Bolance ut beginming of yeur 276,847 274,074
Exchange rate adjustmenis 3,958 (&30
Share of (loss¥profit after tax (25,005} 23,08
Drividends recoived (15,7400 (12,278}
Reserve und other movements 450 (318)
Book value of associated company disposed of (38 500) (7,009
Bulunee ot end of year 202,010 276,847

a3



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

{Continued)

8. Investment in aszociated companies (continued)

The Group's interests in ils essociates, which are unlisted, are as follows:

Name

Jubilee Group Holdings Limited
Royal Star Aszurance (Bahamas) Lid
Crcho Rios Beach Resorts Limited
RGM Limited

Servus Limited

Total at the end of 2011

Name

Jubilee Group Holdings Limited

Raoyal Star Assurance (Hahamas) Ld
ME&C General Insurenes Company Lid
Ocho Rios Beach Resorts Limited
RGM Limited

Servus Limited

Total at the end of 2010

Share ol
Share of Share of Share of  (lnss)/profit Interest
assets limbilities revenue ifler tax held
S'000 000 5000 SO0 Y
= - - (22218) 0.0
109,943 55,5481 98,652 5.674 250
18,365 6,269 999 (20,47E8) 24.0
7ol 175.633 46,645 11,753 313
7467 4,395 24,281 254 50.0
443 888 241,878 168,577 {25,005}
Share of
Share of Share of Share of  (losshprofit Intereat
AZTELE liabilities revenue alter lux held
S'000 000 000 §'000 Yo
BEY, 26 827,069 440,725 8287 39.1
104,188 52,725 89,610 5457 25.0
- - . 622 0.0
39,388 6,832 132 33 240
317,247 189,642 42,064 7,824 333
8.652 5,648 266,689 505 50.0
1,358,763 1081916 555,220 23,024

Mone af the Group’s associated companies are publicly quoted. Effective 31 August 2011, the Group disposed of s 39.1% holding in Jubilee Group

Holdings Limited (Note 32a),

9, Financinl nssets

Financial asgets

Financial ssset in Mutual Funds

Financial assews at fair value through profit ar lass
Held to maturity fimancial assels

Total financial assets

2011 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value villue varlue vilue
5000 S'0ob 57000 57000
11,257,043 11,770,630 11,183,338 11,423 B44
1,164,783 1,164,983 | 244,907 1,244,907
12,422,026 12,935,613 12,428,245 12,668,751
§942,167 5,942,167 6475571 6,475,571
6,479,559 6,993,443 5.952,674 6,193,180
12422026 12935612 12428245 12,668,751
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9, Financinl assers (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss

Equity securities:
- Listed
- Unlisted

Debt secunitics:
- Covernment securities
- Debentures und corporate bonds

Deposits with financial institutions (more than 90 doys)
Other

Interest receivable

Current
Man-current

Carrying value
2011 mnn
£'000 S'000
1,187,088 1,167218
40,506 49,496
1,227,594 1,216,714
2,359,867 2,492,342
1,672 281 2325295
4,032,148 4,517,637
535340 291,994
52,616 47,423
587 956 339417
5,847 698 6,373,768
94469 101,803
5942167 6,475,571
1,971,991 2325412
3,970,176 4,150,159
5.942 167 6,475,571

The carrying amount of financial assers above that were pledped as collateral for lighilities was $4.403,759 000 (2010: 4,024 388, 000)

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Debd securitbes:
= Covernment sccurnitics
- Debentures and corporate bonds

Deposits with finunecinl institutions (more then 90 days)

Interest receivable

2011 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value vilue value
5000 L 1] 5000 5000
5121,861  5.672,964 4,671,772 4,947,192
405,567 421,299 396,030 410,729
5527428 6,094,263 5,067 802 5,357,921
762,734 762,734 T18,883 718,883
6,290,162 6,856,097 5,786,685 6,076,804
189,697 136,448 165,989 116,376
6,479 859 B,993 445 §052 674 6,193,180
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9. Financial assety (contimued)

Current
MNon-currenl

Carrying valog
2011 2010
5000 5'000
663,396 831317
5816463 5121357
6479859 5952674

Where fixed rate bands da not have regular prices in an active market, o projected yield curve based on the most recent issues of government debt is used

te cstimate fair value. Adjustments are made for oredit spreads on non-governmeni 1ssues and features such as call options.

The table below illustrates the movements in financial pssets:

Financial Held ta
assels af fair matarity
value through financial
income statement assets Total
000 §'000 ST000
Al beginning of 2011 6,373,768 5,786,885 12,160,433
Exchange differences (418) (822) (1.240)
Additions 2,156,989 1,620,158 3777047
Disposuls/maturitics (2,621,932) (L115841} (3.,737.773)
Fair value net gaing/(logses) 158,099 {18} 158,081
Impairment lasses (589) - (589}
Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 19) (218.219) (218,219)
At the end ol 2011 5,847,698 6,290,162 12,137,860
At beginning of 2010 T.310,650 4,041,720 11,352,370
Exchange differences 132,933 51.056 184,039
Additions Y 4549755 3115808 7.665,363
Disposals/meturitics (5253,559)  (1422223) (6.675822)
Fair value net gaing/{losses) 316,884 (727 316,157
Impairment losses (260) - [269)
Transfer from nssels held for sale 453,952 - 453,952
Copitalized interest 303 1,051 1,354
Disposal of subsidiary [1,136,891) - _{1,13689])
At the end of 2000 6.373.768 5,786,685 12,160,453
10. Loans and receivahles 011 2000
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
valoe valoe value value
£'000 £'000 §'0HH) §T000
Loans ond receivables 1,510,752 1,529,682 2,148,127 148,127
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10, Loans and receivables {continued)

Carrying vulue
2011 2010
000 5000
Drebi securities

- Covemment sequrities 38,753 an816
= [Debentures and corparate bonds 101,260 107,852
140,013 148,668

Premiums receivable 667,280 814,577
Due fram reinsurers 147,233 84,437
Provision for impairment of premium and reinsurance receivables (33,474) (66,642)
Morgapges 418,097 420,687
Poliey loans 67.102 69,303
Other loans and receivables 612,031 656,495
Provision for impairment of ather loans and receivahles (826) (5.147)
Transfer to assets held for sale (Mote 19) (531,129) -
1346314 1,973,720

Interest reccivable 24,425 25,739
1,510,752 2148127

Current 259 569 B30 480
Mon-zurrent 1250183 1,317,647
1,510,752 2,145,127

The carrving amount of lowns and receivables above that was pledged os collateral for linbilities was $226,746,000 (2010: $352,971,000),

wn 2010

11, Land for development and sale £'000 5000
Ralance at beginning of year 305,382 134,850
Exchange rate adjustments (4,107) (11,453)
Additions 62477 207,563
Reversal of impairment 27,296 -
Provision for impairment - (25,610}
301,048 305,382

Lands for development and sale comprize of the Group's investments in a mixed use commercial and resideniial urban re-development project in Forl De
France, Martinique which is intended for sale. This is accounted for i the lower of cost or net reatizoble value, As ot 31 December 2011 the provision for

impairment is nil (2010; $25.6 Millien),

12, Pension plan asdels

The following information explaine the quantification of the assets recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position and the net incame for

the year in accordance with the provisions of [AS 19

9
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(Continued)

12, Pension plan assels (conlinued)

Fair value of pengion plan assets
Less: Present value of funded abligations

Less: Present value of unfunded obligations

LAS 1% Consolidated statement of linancial position assct

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
626,952 577,197
(580,071) _ {489,572)
46,881 §7,625
(1,054) (R9T)
45,827 56,728

IAS 19 consolidated statement of financial position assets represent the cconomic valuc that the Group will derive from the pension plan surplus based on

its current plans and in accordance with legislative restriclions on the use of pension plan surpluses

The amount in the consolidated income statement is made up as follows:

Expected redurn on plan asscls
Interest cost

Current service cost

Effect of any curtinilment or scitlement

Wet guin/(loss) for the vear (Mote 35)

The movement in the fair valuz of pension plan assets of the year is as follows:

Balance at beginning of yeur
Exchange rale sdjusiments
Expected return on plan assets
Benefit payments

Company contributions
Contributions by plan participants
Actuarial Insses

Balunce ot end of year

The movement in the obligetion to plan members aver the year is as follows:

Balinge st beginning of year
Exchange rate adjustments
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contnibutions by plan participants
Actuanal losses

Curtailments

Benefits paid

Balance ot end of year

2011 2010
$'004) 5000
38,465 37,000
(32,863) (31,131)
{12,651} (20,447
21,732 i
14,583 {14,578)
577,197 552,607
848 2,960
38492 37,120
{15,513) (17.052)
5,036 13,519
769 634
20,123 (12,591
626,052 377,197
490,489 450,769
650 2,262
12,651 20,447
32,963 3L
769 634
0,902 2278
(21.766) =
(15.513) (17,052
581,125 490,469

b1}
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12. Pension plan nssets (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used for sccounting purposes were:

o

LChiscount rales 4.5%- 6.0%
Puture salary mereasey 2.5% - 3.5%
Expected retumn on plan assels 4.5% - 7.5%
Post retirement morality PASD ulumate/

LS rahle GAM 83

GBMIGB VIS

Pre-retirement mortality GAM 94

Withdrawal from service Wil

Future pension increwses 0.0% - 3.5%
Propomion af employees opting for carly
retirement Nil
The actunl rehirn on plan assets was $49, 172,000 (2010: §19,899,0040)
2011

Pencion plan azsets are comprized az follows: 5000
Fquiry securities 426,674
Drebi securities 85,751
Property 14,000
Chher 100,527

626,952

2010
5.5%-7.5%
25%-4.5%
55%-75%

PADO altimate/
U5 mble GAM B3
GRM/GRYS09S
109 OIS
Mil
0.0% - 3 5%

Ml

Yo 5000

68.1%
13.7%

22%
16.0%

374,313
103,362
15,100
4,422

100.0% 317197

010
e

64.9%
17.9%

2.6%
14.6%

1 (H). 0¥

The expected return an plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the mssets underfying the curment investment policy.
Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the conzolidated statement of financial position date. Expected
returns on equity and property investments reflect long-tenm real rates of return experienced in the respective markens.

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 December 2012 are §5,616.000.

As at 31 December 01 2010 2009 2008 2007
Presant value of defined benefit obligation (580,071) (489,572) {449.930) (373,255) {322.540)
Faur value of plan nssets 626.952 TR LT 552,607 SX0,776 466,185
Surplus 46,881 /7,625 102,677 147 521 143,645
Experience sdjusiments on plun linbilitics 57,254 2278 40,506 20,848 6,395
Expericnce adjustments on plan assets 20,123 (12,590) (9,239} (10,597) (8,547)
13, Value of inforee life insurance policies
2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Balance at beginning of year 673,473 583,705
Exchange rie adjusiments (1,702} 13,961
Increase for the year (Note 41) 70,272 75,808
Balonee ot end of year 742,043 673,474

3|



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2011

Expreszed in Trinidad and Tobago Dallsrs
(Continued)

13, ¥ulue of inforce life insurance policies (continued)

Changes in assurnplions during the year:

For the Jumnican life insurance subsidinry:
Changes in expense assumptions
Changes in lapse assumplionsg

Changes in investment returms
Chunges in other assumplions

Totel change

For the Trinidad life insurance subsidiarics:
Chanpes in expense assumptions
There were no chunges in the ussumptions used for the life insuronce subsidiaries in Dutch Caribbesn.
14. Deferred taxation
The following smounts nre shown in the consolideted statement of finencial position:
Deferred tax asseis:

- To be recovered after more than 12 months
= To be recovered within 12 months

Defemed tax labilitics
- Crystallizing after more than 12 months
- Crystallizing within 12 months

Met deferred tax liability

2011 2010
5000 5000
878 (47.461)

426 -

{6,486) 59,290

6,906 279

1,724 12,108

13,330 =
15,183 20,373

6,307 5222
21,490 15,395
(186,878)  (208.432)
{12.050) -
(198,928) (208,432)
(177,438) __ {182,837)

Deferred meome tax pssets sre recognized for te bosses carmed forwurd to the extent that the realization of the related tax benefil through the future

toxable profits is probable,

The movement on the net deferred tax account is s follows:

Balance al beginning of year

Exchange rate adjustments

Credit/(charge) for the vear (Note 38)

Tax charged to equity in respect of revaluation of properties
Disposal of subsidiary

Other movements

Dalance at end of year

2011 2010

S'000 SM000
(182,837 {152,348
260 {1.327)
5717 (40,308)
(574 (910}

- 12,060
1 (4)
(177438) (182837
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{Continued)

14. Deferred taxation {continued)

The movement in the deferred tax asscis and liabilities during the year 18 atiributable to the following items:

Future distributionz

Value to shareholders of inforce
long-term insurance buginess

Zero coupen bonds

Pengion plan assers

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax logses carried forward

Investments ar fair value through
prolit or loss

Revaluation of propertics

Camstraphe rezerve

Future distnibutions

Value to shareholders of inforce
long-lerm nsurance business

Zero coupan bonds

Pension plan assets

Accelernted tax deprecintion

Tax losses carried forward

Investments at fair value through
profit or loss

Revaluation of properties

Catastrophe reserve

Balanee at Exchunge Credit/  Revaluation
beginning rate  (charge) for of Other Disposal of  Balance at
of year  adjustment the year  properties  movements subsidiary Dec 2011
51000 000 £7000 $'000 5000 £'000 £'000
(143,763) 102 7.988 - 1 - (135.,672)
(16,734) - 3,167 - - E (13,567)
1316 - 1,567 - = 2,883
(17,183) (44) (Z31) - - - (17.458)
22,455 138 4917 - - B 17,676
(1,390) 24 (1,590 - - - (3,256)
[10,094) 40 i3 (379} - - (10,600}
(17 444) - - - - — (17 444}
{182,837) 260 5717 (379} 1 — [177.438)
Bulance ot Exchange Credit! Revaluntion
beginning rate  (charge) for ol Other Dispozal of Balance at
af year  adjustment the year  properties  movements  subsidiary Diec 2010
S'000 000 000 000 000 000 $000
(126,932} (510 (16317 = 1) == (143,763)
(14,281} - 14,281 - - - -
(14,507) = {1.827) - = - {16,734)
(3.214) - 4,530 - = - 1,316
(10,773) (23%) {6,171 - - - (17,183)
25,666 {36 {3,155) - - - 22 455
14,681 (174) {27,957) - - 12,060 {1,390)
(8,836) (348) = {910) - = {10,0%4)
(13,752) = G - - - (1748
(152,348) {1,327} (40, 308) {#10) ) 12,060 (182 B3T)

There are tix Josses relating (o oversens subsidigries thet are aveilable for set off against future chargeable profits of 531 638,000(2010 - $18,424,000),
These tax losses expire over varying periods of up to nine years. For these balances, no deferred tax asset has been recognized for 1ax losses carried
forward due to the uncertin timing of their recovery. Some of these [nsses have not yet heen agreed with the respestive tax regulatars

15, Reinsurance ussels

This represents the Group's net contructual righls under remsurence contracts:

Long-term insurance confracts:
With fixed and guaranteed terms
Without fixed terms

2011 2010
§° 004 §'000
35,663 37,018
14,807 14,184
£4.470 5] 204

i3



GUARIMAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars
(Continued)

15. Reinsurance assets (continued)

Short-term insurance contracts:

Claims reported and loss adjustment expenses (Note 23, 1(e))
Claims incurred but not reporied (Note 23,1 (e))

Uncermed premiums (Mote 23,1(0)

Transfer to assets held for gale (Nate 19)

Total reinsurers” share of insurance liabilities

Current
Mon-current

Total remsurers® share of msorance habilites

16, Segregnted fond assets and liabilities of life insurance policies

(a) Assets aof the segregated funds

2011 2010

§° (M) 000
398,740 472217
41,662 12,72
254 800 225481
(69,399) =
625,803 T10.410
£30.273 761,614
363,202 493,066
317,071 268,548
£30273 761,614

The assets listed below arc munaged by the Jumoican life insurance subsidiary on behalf of certain life insuranes policyholders n ten policy scgregaicd
funds. These e the Blue Chip Fund, Eagle Growth Fund, Mumal Growth Fund, Shelier Plus Fund, Horizen Equity Fund, in sddition to the Guardian
Equity Fund, The Guardian Money Market Fund, The Guardian Long Term Growth Fund, The Guardian Stabilization Fund and The Guardian Fareign
Currency Indexed Fund. The policyholders share all rewards and risks of the perfonmance of the funds and the assets have been segregated for determining

the policyholders' imterest in the funds.

Unit values are determined by dividing the value of the agsets in the funds on a valuation date by the number of units in the funds en the valuation date.

The assets are carried at fair value and retums W investors are bused on markel valuations.

Investments:

Covernment of Jamaica securiics

Equity securities

Securilies purchased under resale sgreements
lni trust

Investment properties

Other ussets

Current
Man-gurrent

The related segrepated funds' liability is disclosed ns follows:
Current
Man-current

2011 2010
5000 £'000
324,484 323,985
52558 73295
26,277 14,625
Joa 34
2,708 2,655
446,721 414874
52781 45,063
499,502 459,937
79,058 59,687
420,444 400,250
499,502 459,937
79,058 39 687
470,444 400,250
448,502 459,937
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16, Segregated fund assets and liabilities of life insurance policies {contmued)

(b) Income from segregated Munds' investments

Government of Jamaica securities
Equity securities
Secuntics purchased under resale agreements

17, Deferred acquisition costs

Shori-term Insurance contracts:
Balance st beginning of year

Met exchange differences

Incrense m the year

Release in the year

Transfer to assers held for sale (Mote 19)

Balance at end of year

Current

Non-curment

18. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cesh eguivalents in Mutual Funds

Cash at bank and in hand
Short term deposits (90 days or less)

Cash and cash equivalents in Mutual Funds
Bank overdrafl (Note 24)

et cash and cash equivalents

Al beginning of year

Difference on retranslation of opening balance
Transfer from nssets held for sule

Assets held for salc

At end of year

Wet increase/{decrease) in cash used in cash flow

2011 2010
000 000
42,762 49,185
20,668 11,443
2276 2,087
65,7046 62,715
369,624 456,541
(72.521) {14,508)
331,960 386,020
{370,007 {468,336)
{176,399) =
72,657 369,623
72,657 267 469
= 72,154
72,657 369,623
1,739,394 1475421
161,050 150,517
1,900, 444 1,625 938
913,403 723,326
#25.99] 752,005
1,739,394 1,475,421
161,050 150,517
(568) -
1,859 876 | 625938
1,625,938 2285993
(24,672) 4,542
- 295,681
= (57,589}
1601 266 2.528.627
1,899,876 1,625,938
298610 (902 655)

35



GUARDIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobaga Dollars

(Continued)

18. Cash and cash eguivalents (contimued)

The interest rate on thart term hank deposits held by subsidiaries ranged fram 0.25% - 7.08% (2010: 0.79% = 9%).

The carrying smount of cush end cash equivalents pledged os colloteral for financial libiliticy wes $28,157,000 as ol 3| December 2011 (2010
£23,224,000).

19, Assets and linbilities held for sale
Aszets and liahilities held for sale

The Group's remsurance subsidiary Guurdian Re (SAC) Limited provided proporfiona] quots share remsurance on an intemational property book and
ngidental e book wnitten in the Llovd's market up to 30 Seplember 20011, After this dete, the Group ceased underwriting any new risks ot Lloyd®s or
offering renewal at expiry, and iz actively secking to dispose of its residual interest in these treaties, Conscquently, the Group's residunl interests in these
treatics have been classificd as a disposal group held for sale and as a discontinued operation, Additionally, during the vear the Group in conjunction with
other investors formed Appleclaim Insurance Holdings Limited (AIHL), a company in which the Group holds a 32.217% interest. This company was
formed exclusively for facilitating the disposition of these treaties, and therefore has also been designated as held for sale.

The net results of the disposal group end AIHL have been conselidated into one line on the Statement of Income s MNet loss on Discontimued Crperations,
and the resulls of 2010 have been similerly restated o inclede 2 one ling comparative result. These resulty are presented below;

011 010

£'000 £000
Revenue 585,047 896,114
Expenses (762,034) (954,284)
Met loss on AIHL for the vear (20,213) -
Impairment of ATHL (12,709 -
et loss {208 909) (58,170}
Other discontinued operations = 2,586
Met loss on dizcontinued operations (208, 90%) (55,584)
The major classes of assets and lisbilitics classified as held for sale at 31 December 2011 are as fallows:
Assets held for sale
Finanginl assels 218,219 -
Financial azsets - interest receivable 5.210 -
Reinsurance assets 69,399 -
Deferred poquisition eost 176,359 -
Other aszets 531,129 —

1,000,356 -

Liabilities related 1o assets held far sale
Shart term insurance contracts _ 1o003se 00 -
Met asseis dircctly associated with disposal group held for sale - -
The net cash fows incurred by the disposal group are as follows:
Operating 195,923 79,151
Investing < =
Met cash inflow 195,023 79,151
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20. Share capital
Authorized

An unlimitzd number of ordinary shares of no par value
An unlimited number of preferred shures of no par vilue

Fsveed and filly paid
231,899,986 ordinary shares of no par value (2010; 231,899,986 ordinary shares)

n 2010
5000 5000
2,008,338 2.003.470

The holders of ordinary shures are entitled to ore vole on 2 show of hands and one vote {or euch such share held by him on o ballol or poll ot ofl meetings
of shurcholders of the compuny, to receive any dividends declared und puyable by the company on the ordinery shores and o receive the remoimng
property of the company upen dissolution, liquidation or winding up in proportion of ordinary shares then held by cach of them, This is subject to the

rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions anaching 1o any other class of shares af the company.

Share
Number of Share option
shares capital plan Total
{thousands) £'000 000 5000
Balance at | January 2011 231,557 1,952,353 51,117 2,003,470
Moverment in unallocated shares (502) 197 - 197
Executive share option plan:
- wvalue of services provided - 5270 5270
- lapses = (599 (3549)
Balance at 31 December 2011 231 055 1,952,550 55788 2,008 338
Balance at 1 January 2010 01810 1,480,355 50,043 1530398
Isswe of shares 29,747 47],59% - 471,908
Execcutive share option plan:
- value af services provided - - 1,950 1,950
- lupses = = {576 (ET8)
Balance at 31 December 2010 231,557 1,952.353 51.117 2,003,470

Performance share option plan

The Group operates a Stock Option Plan for its Exeoutives. A total of 33,890,023 shares heve been allocated to this plen since meeption inclusive of

bonus 155ues und stock dividends. Increases were approved at the Annual Meetings in 1999, 2004 and in 2011

The current stutus of options inclusive of bonus issues and stock dividends to date is as follows (in thousands):

Total shares allocated to the plan
lssued pursuant o exercise of options
Outstanding options

Remaining options have not been granted

2011 2010
33,890 17,031
(9,586) (9,586)

{11.389) (6,386}
12,015 1,059
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20, Share capital (Continued)

The movement in the number of share aptions outstanding for the year is as follows;

2011 2011 2010 2010
Average Options Average Optivns
exercise  (thousands) exercise  (thousands)

price price
Al beginning of year L1 2710 6,386 § 2710 6,504
Granted - 18.00 5,085 - -
Lapsed 5 2392 (§2) § 2674 (118)
At end of year 5 23.06 11.389 § 27.10 6,386

The exercite price of the options gramed up to 2008 is equal o the average market price of the shares on the three dealing duys preceding the date of the
grant. The exercise price of the options granted in 2011 is the greater of 518.00 and the adjustzd reference price, The vesting period is 2 years, Oplions are
exercisable staming two years from the grant date up to the eight anniversary of the date of grant. The Group has no legal or constructive obligetion to

repurchise or settle the aptions in cash

Share oplions oulstanding af the end of the year have the following expiry dates and exercise prices;

MNumber of shares

Expiry Exercise {thousands)

date price 2011 2010

14 Sep 2015 5201.40 243 243

3] Mar 2016 $33.17 763 763

3 Apr2017 £43.33 695 695

28 May 2018 £27.73 1,398 1421

T Apr 2019 1999 1,511 1,538

31 Mar 2020 £24.51 1,694 1,726

5 Sep 2021 518.00 5,083 -

11,389 6,386

21. Reserves
Property
revaluation Statutory  Translation

TESETrVE TESETVES TeseTVEs Tatal

5000 5000 LAl 1] 000

Balance at 1 January 2011 52 498 8,655 (350,740) (249,587)
CHher comprehensive income 1,347 287 {17,725} (16,091)
Transfer from retained eamings - 1318 1318
Balance at 31 December 2011 53,845 10,260 [368.465) (264,360
Balanee at | January 2010 91,529 6,289 (423,007) {325,189)
Other comprehensive loss 969 367 73,436 74,772
Transfer from retained camings R I (1.169) 830
Balance at 31 December 2010 92498 §.655 (350,740) (249,587)
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21. Reserves {continued)

The property revaluation reserve is used 1o record increases or decreases in the carrying amount of an item of property that has been revalued. If an aeset’s
carrying amount & increased s o result of o revaluation, the incresse @ recopnized in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. However, the
incresse is recognized in the consolidated income statement to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the seme assel previously recognized in
the starement of comprehensive income, If the asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recogmized in the
consolidated income statemenL

A statutory reserve is maintained by general insurance companies in Trinidad and Tobago. This is in accordance with the provisions of Section 171 of the
Insurence Act 1980 of Trimidad and Tobago, where companics are required 1o sppropriate towards statutory reserve ot least 23% of the prior yeur's profif
until the exeess of rssets over liahilities equals or exceads the reserve in respect of it uneamed premiums. The general insurance companies i Trinided
and Tobago comply with this requirement.

The Financial Institutions Act 1993 requires a financil institution in Trinidad and Tobago to transfer annually a minimum of 10% of its profit after
fwenfion (o @ reserve fund until the balence on this reserve 5 not less than the paid up capitel of the institution. The wssel monagement company in
Trinidad and Tobago complies with this requirement

The transiution reserve is used 10 record exchenge differences wnsing from group companics whose functional currency 5 different (o the functional
currency used in the consolidated financial statements Differences in retranslating opening net assers for investment in group companies using the
exchange rate at year end compared to the exchange rate at the beginning of the yewr are recognized in other comprehensive income and taken 1o the
trunslotion reserve, The difference betwesn o group company's profit or loss for the year trenslated st the vear end exchange rute und the profit or loss for
the year converted 81 the avernge rate for the year is recognized in other comprehensive income and taken to the transistion reserve.

12, Mon-controlling interests in subsidiaries

At the end of the year, the nan contralling interest balance represents s 42% effective shareholding in Laevylose Inc Limited Group and 46% shareholding
in Trans-MNemwil Insurance (Grenada) Limited,

23, Insurance contracis

2011 2010
5'000 5000
Lﬁﬂg larm |nrurance confracts;
With fixed and gusranteed terms and without DPF (Mote 23, 1{a}) 5791328 5,422,839
With fixed and guaranteed termis and with DPF (Note 23.1 (b)) 65,372 69,488
Without fixed terms (Note 23.1(c)) 3,251,344 2.B50,933

9,108,244 8,343 262
Panticipating policyholders® share of the surplus from
long-term insurance business (Note 23.1(d)) 453,666 459.277

8.563.910 8,802,539

Short term (nsurance contracts:

Claims reponted and loss adjustment expenses (Note 23.1(e)) 1,193,975 2,156,045
Claims incurred but not reported (Nate 23.1(c)) 107,763 151,500
Uneamed premiums MNote 23.1(N) 744,467 1,303,279

2046208 3,651,224

Total gross insurance linbilities 11,610,115 12,453,763
Current 1,434,361 2,510,820
Non-current 10,175,754 95947 943

11,610,115 12,453,763
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{Contimped)
23, Insurunce contructs (continued)
23.1 Movements in insorance linbilities and reinsurance assets
{#) Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms nd without DPF
2011 2010
5000 5000
Al beginning of vear 5,422 839 4,962 3586
Yaluation premiums received 253,267 283,984
Liabilities released for payments an death, surrender and other terminatiogs i the year (234,242) (238.,901)
Aceretion of ntercst 190,855 181,251
Cash paid for claims settled in the year (240,662 (190,545)
Increase in liabilities 248307 175,105
Other movements 153,326 171,262
Met exchange differences {2,3562) 78,297
At end of vear 5,791,328 3422.839
i) Long-term insurance cantracts with fixed and guaranteed terms shd with DPF
At beginning of year 68,428 67,048
et exchunge differences {2,475) 3,683
Chanpe in interest rates 1,346 a1l
Change in expenses )] (2.840)
Marmal decrewse due (o the passage of time __ Rosm 24)
Arend of year 65372 B9, 488
{e) Long-term insurance contracts without fived lerms
At beginning of year 2,850.935 2,495,265
Premiums received 630,120 547,593
Fees deducted from aceount halances (206,397 (176,7686)
Liabilities released for payments on death, surrender and ather terminationg in the yoer (309,244) (2157110
Changes in unil prices 250,586 1BE 458
Cush paid for claims senled in the yeur (273,934) (249.435)
Increase in Habilities 295,591 269,072
Orher movements 13,549 {74243
Mel exchange differences 3R {118)
At end of year 3251,544 2850935
(d) Participating policyholders® share of the surplus fram
long-term insurance business
Al begmning of year 450277 445959
Surplus arising from operations 8718 14,359
Translation reserve (12.327) [1,041%
Al end of year 455,666 459,277
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(Continued)

13, Insurance contructs (continwed)

13.1 Mavements in insurance liabilities and reinsurance asscty (contfhucd)

Short term insurance contracta:

(e) Claims and loss adjustment expenses/claims incurred but not repodred

2011 2010
Gross  Heinsuranc Met Gross  Reinsurance Nel
Year ended 31 December 5000 S0y $000 000 $1000 $000
MNatified claims 2,156,045 (472,217 1,683,828 1,043,606 (152,858) 890,748
Incurred but not reported 191,900 (12,712 179,188 176554 {10,385) 166,169
Tetal at beginning of year 2,347,945 (4gav20 1,883,016 1,220,160 (163,243) 1056917
Cash paid for claims sentled in the year (1.651,992) 142 862 (1,509,130) (1,616859) 109,232 (1,507,627
Increase in liahilitles 1,291,184 (104,135 1,187,049 1,796,262 (167379 1,628,883
Met exchange differences (43,176) 54801 (39.375) {37,157) 10,342 {26,815)
Transfer (to)from liabilitics held for sale (640, 223) 38396)  (580,827) 985,539 (273,881) 711,658
Total ot end of year 1,301,738 (381,005 420,733 2,347 045 (484, 5249) |, 863,016
Notified claims 1,193,975 (348,501 245,174 2,156,045 (472217 1,683 828
Incurred bur not reported 107,763 (32,204 75,559 191,900 12,712) 179,188
1,301,738 (381,005 920,733 2,347,545 {184,929} 1863016
(M Provisions for uncarncd premiums
2011 2010
Gross  Helnsoranc MNet Gross  Hemnsurance Net
S'00n S'ﬂ‘ﬂl $'000 5000 5000 5000
Total at beginning of year 1,303,279 (225,481 1,077,798 1,495,130 (202,005) 1,293,125
Increass in the period 1,223,224 {253,483 969,741 1,343,364 (226,212} 1,117,152
Release in the period (1,304,125) 22s.302)  (1,078,733) (1,836,617) 226,686 (1.609.931)
Mel exchange differences (117.778) (1,229 (119,007 (35.114) (76 (35.874)
Transfer (to)/from liabilities held for sele {3560.113) 10,003 {350,130) 336518 (23,120} 313,326
Total st end of year 744,467 (244,798 499,669 1,303,279 (225.481) 1,077,798

23.2 Development claim tables - short term insurnnce contracts

The development of insurance ligbilitics provides a measure of the Chroy
considered o be the most appropriate for the business written by 1}
accident year, these cluims arc reported separately by underwriting

basis),
The 1op hall of each tuble below illustrates how the Group's estimate of (o

successive year ends. The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumule
position as per summany below,

8

h's ability lo estimute the ultimate value of claims. An sccident year hasis is
up. However, due (o the unavailability of the Lloyd's syndicates’ claims by
of account. This presentation is differemt from the basis used for the claims

»
development tables for the other insurance claims of the Group, where m]rcl'mcc 15 to the setual date of the event that caused the claim (accident year

claims cutstanding for each accident year / underwriting year has changed ut

¢ claims to the amount appearing on the consolidated statement of financial

Gl
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(Continued)

23, Insurunce coniracts (continued)

23.1 Development clwim tables - short term insurance contracts (contigued)

Ingurance
- By accident yea
- By underwriting year

Total liability (Note 23.1 ()

Ingurance
= By accident year
= By underwriting vear

Totl lisbility (Note 23.1 (e))

Insurunce clgims - gross
Accldent year

Estrmate of ultimate claims costs:
= at end of accident year

= one year later

= wo yers later

= three years later

- four years later

Current cstimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Ligbility recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position

Liability in respect of prior years
Toual lahility

Insurance claims - pross
Underwriting year

Estimate of ultimete claims costs:
= arend of underwriting vear

- one year later

= o years later

= three years laer

= four years [ater

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative paymenis 1o date

Liahility recognized in the consolidated
staterment of financinl position
Liability in respect of prior years

Total lability

Total
S0
732,604
569,134
I,M 1,738
574274
346,459
920,733
200 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total
5 5000 5000 000 57000 000
705,32 737,761 742,897 DE0,4T6 579,973 4,046,434
607, 700,706 708,607 923 777 - -
107,77 716,830 GRG 989 - -
691,28 T18.080 - - - -
B, - - - - -
6968 718080 682,580 93,717 870,073 3,908,709
{635,601 (674,433) (642 BE3) (825,975} (517, 418) (3.296310)
61,289 43,647 47,106 97,802 162,555 612,399
120,205
732 604
3931 350,511 352,826 38,874 35,117 1,170,594
751,97 629,031 GR/7 456 6,308 =
756,79 603,906 671,009 - = =
7610 97 248 - - - -
757,35 - - - = —
757,35 597,243 671,009 36,368 35117 2,097,100
{546.74 (508,553) (434, 206) {14,753) {7,538)  (1.631,780)
110,618 88,695 216,803 21615 21,579 465,310

103 824

—l

5(55"I 134
&
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRER 2011

Expressed in Trinided and Tobago Dollers
{Continued)

23. Insurance contracts (continged)

23.2 Development claim tables - short term insurance contracts (contingeed)

Insurance elnims - net
Acciden! veur

Eztimate of ultimate claims coste:
- atend of accident year

- one year luter

- two years later

= three years [nter

- four vears luler

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments (o date

Liahility recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Linbility in respect of prior years

Total liability

Insurance claims - net
Underwriling year

Estimate of ultimate claims costs:
- at end of underwriting vear

= one year later

- two years later

= three years later

- four years later

Current cstimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date

Liability recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial pasition
Linbility in respeéct of prior years

Total liability

24. Financial linbilities

Mon-current portion of inancial liabilities
Investment contract liabilities (Mote 24.1)
Medium-term bormowings (Mote 24.2)
Drervative fineneiel mstrument

1007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Totul
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 §'000
529,129 618,683 66T 520 £12.804 824,204 3.452.340
49,838 581,080 649,415 755,060 - -
560,019 604,433 630,232 - - =
550,054 603,925 - = -
526,677 - - - - -
526,677 (03 925 630,232 755,060 824,204 3,340 058
(501,957 {555,625) (575.673) (654,732) (5225800  (2.840.767)
24,720 48,100 54,559 70,328 a0l 624 499331
74,943

74,274

373,485 322443 308.091 38,874 35007 1,078,010
633,743 19838 600,132 36,368 - -
687,769 586,069 506,536 - - -
701,324 588,340 - - - -

699,116 - - -~ -

699, 116 SRB340 §96,536 36,368 35117 1,.955477
(644,522 (508,553) (434,208) [14.753) (7.538) _ (1,629.572)
54,504 79,787 142 330 21,615 17,579 325905
20,354

346,459

2011 2010

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

valoe value value value

£'000 £'000 so00 £'000

1,538,945 1,538,945 1,435,180 1,435,180

1,260,129 1.253.373 S0R,600 Q02,700

1,040 il M0 24 856 24 856

2,830,114 2823358 2,388,636 2382736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

(Continued)

24, Finuncial linbilities (continued)

Current portion of lMinancial labilities
Medium-term borrowings
Short-term borrowings

Total current partian of barrowings (Note 24 2)
Bank overdiaft (Note 18)
Interest puyable

Toral

The derivative financial instrument réletes to an interest rate swap that
fwir value and the correspending loss included in net fair value gains/{los
emount of this mstrument is USS50 Million.

The apggregate fair value of borrowings is determined by opplying u dise
curve for a similar debt instrument. The discount rale used in the valuat
term debt, the carrying amounls approximate therr fuir value,

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value vulue yulue value
000 £000 5’000 5000
26,665 26,865 243,080 242 508
75235 73235 89841 89841
102,100 102,100 332921 332349
558 568 - -
32,743 32.743 B. 175 R.175
135,411 135411 341,096 340,524
2965525 2958769 2729732 2.723260

an December 15, 2015, The derivative financial instrument ig recorded at

1 on financial instruments in the consolidated income statement. The notional

ted cash flow model for the remaining term to matunty wing o current yield
n technique is bescd on the borrowing rate of 7.98% (2010: 7.98%). For shon

The Group hes not had eny defaults of principal, interest ar ather breachewith respect 1o their borrowings during thie period (20110 - NiT).

24.1 Investment confract labilities

The movements in the liabilities arising from investment contracts are sunfmarized below:

Al begimning of yeur

Premiums received

Fees deducted from aecount balunces

Agcount balances paid on surrender and other terminations in the year
Interest eredited through income statenent

Cther movements

Met exchange differencey

At end of year
Investment contract linbilities cirry Noating retes of mterest and therefore

24.2 Borrowings

Parent company
Subsidiaries

Current
Men-current

011 2010
S'000 3000
1,455,180 1,304,584
212,924 199279
(10,886) (21.918)
(187.686) (275,830)
78,951 81,972
(4,542) nam
(4.997) 39,821
1,538,944 1,455,180
fhe carrying amounts approximate their fair values
011 2010
$'000 £'000
1,093,295 1,201,680
268 934 39,841
1,362.229 1,241,521
102,100 332,921
1,260,129 G908 600
1,362,229 1,241,521
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Expressed in Trimded und Tobago Dollars

(Centinued)

24. Financiol liabilities (continued)

24,2 Borrowings (conlinued)

Detusls of 1o1al current end non-gurrent bank loans are as [ollows:
Parent Company

Fneility 1 - 51 billion

pnnually. Senes 1 6 repeyable by 7 equal half-vearly insullments of 53
installment of $376,373,000 commencing on 27 July 2011, Series 2 iz
installments of $2,053,333 and » final balloon instaliment of 564,416,667
charge over the fixed and floating assew of the Group.

Thig is a fixed mie 12-year bond ending in December 2023 and is :mI

Facility 2 - 550 million

This is an unsecured |-year fixed rate loan ending in October 2012, Intered) is charged at 2.82% per annum payable at maturity.

Subsidiaries

Loan 1 - USS50 million

scd of two zcries. Interest iz charged at 7.975% per annum and s paid semi-
75,000, 16 equal half-vearly installments of 518,750,000 and a final balloan
avahble by 6 equal half-yearly installments of 8375000, 16 equal half-vearly
commencing on 27 January 2012, The [oan is secured by a debenmure creating a

This is a secured floating rate S-year loan ending in June 2016, Interest igcharged ot LIBOR plus 4.8% and 15 payable semi-annuelly. The principal i3 to

be repaid at maturity. The loan is sécured by the shares of o subsidiary.

15, Third party interest in Mutual Funds

Balance at beginning of year

Change in liahility for interest in consolidated funds (Note 33)
Unrenlized (losses)guing

Met change in mutual fund holder balances

Distributions

26, Post retirement medical benefit obligations

The amaounts recagnized in the consolidated statement of financial positio for the Dutch Caribbean insurance compenics arc as follows:

Present value of obligations

The amount in the consalidated income statement is made up as follows:
Interest cost

Current service cost

Avtunral losses

Adjustment in value of recagnizable assets

(income)expense for the year (Note 36)

The movement in the liability is as follaws:
Balance at beginning of yvear

Difference on retranslation of opening belance
{Income)fexpense ps per nboye

Balance at end of vear

2011 2010
£'000 $'000
1,065,548 B66,167
22,569 31,733
(6,966) 63,500
23,803 129,434
{19,611) {25,286)
1,085,343 1,065,548
2011 2010
$1000 ST000
60,923 78,916
4,530 4011
22159 4,067
5.897 2310
(29,114) -
{16,428) 10,388
78,916 69498
{1,565) (970)
{15,428) 10,388
60,923 78916
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{Continued)

26, Post retirement medicnl benefit obligations {continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows;

Dhscount rate
Healthcare cost escalation
Retiree premium escalution:
Existing retirees
Future retirees
Pre-retirement mortality

Post retirement mortality

The effect of a8 1% movement in the gssumed medien) cost trend rate is a8

Elfect on Lhe uggregate of the current service east and Interest cost
Effect on the defined henefit abligation

Expected contributions 10 pest-employment benefit plans for the year endibe 31 December 2012 are $1,763,000,

As at 3] December

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Experience adjustments on plan labilities

27. Other liabilitics

Depasits and premiums received in odvance
Amount due o remsurers
Other pevables

28, Net premium income

{a) Insurance premium income

Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms
Short-term nsurence coniracts:

= premiums receivable

- change in uneamed premium provision

(h) Insurance premium ceded 1o reinsurers
Long-term reinsurance contracts
Short-term reinsurance contricls:

- premiums payable

- change m uncamed premium provision

Follows:

011
5000

60,923
104

e
£'000

TR916
UAHE

200
51000

69,498
4,210

0 2010

4. 7% 5:5%

6.0% 6.0%

0.0% 0.0%%

0.0% 0.0%

GaM/ GAM/

GBVI093 GBYH93

Tgnored lgnored

Increase Decrease
7486 6373
11,566 9,088
2008 2007
5000 3000
48,458 40,277
2,111 283
2011 2010
5000 S'0on
80,703 67,914
186,275 189,151
564,213 501,770
831,191 758,835
1,616,550 1,626,972
1,390,589 1939917
{54,533) 306,374
3,952,606 1.873.213
(87,162) (74,296)
(1,015,845) (819,516)
35,261 (2,917
{1,067 746) _ {696,729)
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(Continued)

249, Policy acquisition expenses

Commissions
Other expenses for the acquisition of insurance and investment contraca

30, MNet insurance benefits and claims

Insurance benefits - gross

Insurance benefits - recovered rom réinsurers

Insurance claims and loss adjustment cxpenscs - Eross

Insurance claims and Inss adjustment expenses - recovered from reinsurers

Insurance benefits
Leng-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranieed terms and withay
<« death, maturity and surrender benefits

- ingreuse in linbilitics

Long-term insurance contracts without fixed terms:
- denth, moturity and surrender benefits

= chenge in unit prices

Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms and with O
- denth, materity and surrender benefits
- ingremse in lizbilities

Shor term insurance contracis - life

Total cost of policyholder benefits

Insurance benefils

Long-term msurance contructs with fixed and guuranieed terms and withogg DFE:

= death, maturity and sarrender benefits

- increase in liabilities

Long-lerm insurance contructs without fixed terms;
= death, maturity and surrender benefits

= change in unit prices

Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms and with TJFF;

- denth, matunty and surrender benefits
= increase in labilitles
Shart term insurance contragts - life

Tuotal cost of policyholder benelits

31. Investment income

Fair value through profit or loss assets - interest income
Fair valug through profil or loss essels - dividend income
Held-to-maturity assets - interest income

Loans and receivables - interest income

Cash and cash equivalents - intersst incoms

2011 2010
5000 5000
468,650 03,672
44,994 44,897
513,684 548,560
1,498 845 1,481,824
(32,678) 21417
B35 686 1,268,747
(100,442) (156,257
2221,411 2,572,897
2011
Gross  Reinsurance Met
5000 $°000 5000
DPF:
513,832 [18,638) 405,194
367,803 522 368,325
273,238 £10,743) 262,495
297 490 - 297 4590
PF:
23,321 - 13,321
1,665 - 1.665
21,496 (3:819) 17677
1 498 845 (32.678)  1.466,167
010
Gross  Heinsurance Mel
5000 s5°000 5000
423 604 [13,674) 409,930
428,020 3,066 41] 086
254,188 (10,727} 243,461
345,909 = 345,909
21,934 - 21,934
(3,737 - (3,737}
11,906 (82) 11.824
| 481 824 {21, 417) 1,460,407
2011 2010
£'000 S 000
265,097 327,180
27,921 25918
453,769 152,450
68215 Ti610
17,043 30,137
B32,045 871,295
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(Continued)

32, Net realized guins on linnncinl instruments

Equity sccuntics

Deht securities

Loss on disposal of subsidiary (Note () below)

Gain on disposal of associated company (Note (a) below)
G on settlement of loan (Note (b) below)

Giain on [FC tranzaction (Mote (c) below)

(2} Effective 31st Aupust 2011, the Group disposed of ils 39.1% sh
$73.982,000 in 2011, The Group disposed of its 100% sharcholding in
This sale accounted for the loss on disposal of $65,750,000 in 2010,

Sales proceeds
Less: disposal expenses

Met proceeds

Less:

Goodwill

Met assets disposed of and realized foreign exchunge losscs

Loss on disposal

(b} The Group negotiated sefthement of a loan arrangement which resul

() A fair value gain of $59.39 million wis recorded in 2010 on the s¢
GHL.

33. NMet Mair value pains on financial instruments

Net fajr value paing on financial assets ar fair value through profit or loss
Provision for impairment

Change m hebility for mutual funds (Note 25)

Fair value gains / {losses) on investment properties (Note &)

34. Fee income

Policy administrutivn and ussel menagement services:

- Insurence coniracts

- Investment eontracts without & discrelionary participation featurs
Surrender charges — insurnce conluets

Ciher

2011 2010
5000 5000
5,359 23821
4,531 5,002

= [6:5,750)
73,042 -
= 222,450
= 59390
3,872 245,003

holding in Jubilee Group Holdings Limited [JGHL], resulting in & gain of
ardien Asset Manegement (Jumaice) Limited [GAMIA] on 17 August 2010

in a gain of $222,450,000 in 2010,

2001 2010
5000 51000
JGHL GAMIA

118,725 103,397
{1,888) (9,711)
116,837 03,686
(2.894)

(42,833 (156,542)
73,982 (635,750)

ement of the Intermationel Finance Corporation debt in exchange for shares m

2011 2010
5'000 5'000
68,464 163,047
14,553 (25,616)
(22,569) (31,733)
23,088 {8,943)
¥3,536 98,753
4,226 2513
23,486 22,180
10,548 6,074
5,804 4,881
44 464 35,648

tif
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
Expressed in Trinided and Tobago Dollars
(Continued)
35. Other income/loss
2011 2010
000 000
Rental income 32,098 27,514
Foreipn exchange gains/{losses) 13,504 {44 682)
Met gmin{loss) for the year on pension plan esscts (Mote 12) 14,583 (14,378)
Other income 31,363 23439
92,008 (8,2307)
36, Operating expenses
Stalf cost 372,839 376,280
Depreciation and amortization 49316 51,282
Auditors' remuneration 10386 8,166
Direvtors” fees 5,630 5283
Other expenscs 290 033 287,021
729,204 728,032
Stafl coat includes:
Wages, salaries and bonuses 299,356 282,283
Health end medical 11,974 11,568
S1aiT Training 1656 .79
Mational Insurance 21,247 20,193
Pension cosls 11,678 6,450
Post retirement medical benefit obligations (Note 26) {16,428 10,388
Termination benefits 2,074 3@
Other 39,242 37,722
372,839 376,280
Average number of employees 2,519 2,403
37. Finance charges
Interest on borrowings from financial institutions 110,044 E2 854
38. Toxation
Current tnx 89,006 103,294
Husiness levy/green fund levy 2,909 1,735
Prior year taxation adjustment 950 (8,539
Deferred tax (Note 14) (5,717) 40,308
87,148 136,798
69
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011

Expressed in Trinidad and Tobago Dollars

(Continued)

38. Taxation (continued)

The tax on the profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of the parent as follows:

2011 2010
5000 5000
Profit before taxation 551,883 632,085
Prima facic tx calculated at domestic corporation tax rate of 25% 137,971 158,021
Effect of differeny tax rate of |ife insurance companies (19.448) (26,337)
Effect of different tux rate in other countries {1.,800% 28,730
Income not subject to tax (206,144) (259.76T)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 182,395 222,123
Mel sdjustment 1o recognized and unrecognized lux losses (2,269) 1
Tax relicls und deductions (2.005) {4,078)
Rusiness levy/green fund levy 2,509 1,735
Prior year taxation adjestment 250 (8,045)
Tux on dividend 7348 10,036
Orther {12,660 13,384
Tax charge for the period 87,148 136,798

392, Earningy per share

Basic eamings per share amounts are caloulated by dividing Whe net profit for the year attributable 1o ordinary shareholders of the parent by the welghted
average number of ordinary shares oulstanding ol the consolidiled stalement of fnanciel position date,

For the diluted camings per share, the weighted average number of ordinery shores outstunding during the year 15 adjusted for the weighted number of
shure options gronted (o the Executives.

2011 2010
000 1000
Met profit antributable 1o ordinary shareholders 261,105 405,505
Met profit eitributable to ordinary shercholders from continuing operations 471,012 461,089
Met loss anributable to ordinary sharehalders from discontinued oparations (209,909 (55,584)

MNumber of shares {("000)

Weighted average number of ardinary shares in lssue (thousands) 231,097 209332
Effect of dilution

Shore options 7161 6,504
Weighted average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 238.258 215,836
Basic eamings per ordinary share 1.13 1.94
Diluted eamings per ordinury share 110 1.E8
Basic eamings per ordingry share from continuing operations 2,04 229
Diluted earnings per ordinary share from continuing cperations 1.9% .14
Hastic (losz) per ordinary share from discontinued operations (091} (0.2}
Diiluted (loss) per ordinary share fom discontinued operations (0.88) (0.28)
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40. Dividends
2011 2010
£'000 5'000
Final dividend for 2010 - 13¢ per share (2009 33¢ per share) 76,248 66,728
Interim dividend for 2011 - | 5¢ per share (2010: 17¢ per share) 34,658 39,170
110,906 105,898

On 23 March 2012, the Board of Directors deglared a final dividend of 37 ¢ents per share (2010. 33 cents). These financial statements do not reflect the
final dividend which will be accounted for as an appropriation of releined eumings in the year ending 31 December 2012

41. Adjustment for non-cash items in operating profit

2011 2010
5000 s000
Share of loss/(profit) from associated companies (Note §) 25,005 (23,028)
Ineresse in the velue to shureholders of inforee long-term business (Mote 13) (70,272) (75,808)
Met fair value gains on financial and other assets (60,897 {173,603)
Change [n lability for interest in consolidated funds (Mote 25) 2,569 31,733
Met realized guns on finencial and other asscls (B3,E61) (218,682)
Impairment of financial assets 12,743 11,695
Met (gain)oss for the year an pension plan assets (Mote 12) {14,583) 14,578
Deprecintion and amortization (Note 36) 49316 51,282
Lozs on disposal of property, plant and equipment 933 531
Change in fair vale of investment property (Nole §) (23,088) 8,945
Gain on disposal of investment property 232 -
Foreign exchange losses 9,163 24 897
Other non-cath expense 9.A461) 2,882

(142.149) (339.801)

42, Fair values of financinl instruments

The classification of financial instruments at fair value can be determined by reference to the source of inputs uwsed to derive the fair value, The
classification uses the fallowing three-level hierarchy:

Level 1

Included in the Level | category wre finunciul assets that are measured in whole ar in part by reference to published quotes in an active market A financial
instrument is regarded as quoled in en uetive market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, braker, industry group,
pricing service or regulotory agency end those prices represent actual and regularky occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis,

Level 2

Included m the Level 2 category are financial assets thar are measured using a valuation lechnique based on wssumptions thet we supported by prices from
observable current market trangactions, and for which pricing is oblained via pricing services, bul where prices have nol been determined in & sclive
market. This includes financial assets with fair values based on broker quoles, investments in mutual funds with published net esset values and cvidence of
trades and assets than are valued using the Group's own models whereby the majonty of assumptions are market observable,

Level 3

Included in the Level 3 calegory wre financial assets that arc not quoted as there are no active markets to determine a price. These financial instruments are
held at cost, being the fuir value of the consideration paid on acquisition of the investment, and are regularly assessed for impairment, The main set class
in this category is unlisted squity instruments,

Tl
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41, Fuir values of financinl instruments (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instrumants recorded a2 fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

31 December 2011

Financial assels ut fuir valoe through profit or loss

Equity securities
Debt securities
Other financinl esscls

Heconciliation of movements in Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

Tuotal falr

Level | Level 2 Level 3 value
5000 S000 1000 $'000
|.184. 309 2,778 40,506 1,227,594
2.929.307 887,842 214,999 4,032,148
16,005 6,632 9,979 52,616
4,149,621 897,253 265,484 5,312,358

The follawing table shaws a reconcilintion of the opening and closing recorded amount of Level 3 financial assets and liabilitics which sre recorded at fair

value,

Total guins
or losses for
the period
included in
income
Total statement for
At Exchange gain/{loss) Al ussets held
I Januury rute in income Transfers to 31 December at 31 Dec
P14 ) adjustment statement Purchases Sales Level ] &2 2011 Wi
5000 £'000 £'000 £000 S0 000 £°000 000
Financinl assets af fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 49 467 (3.086) {4,162) - (13) (1,700) 40,506 {4,163}
Deht securities 247,820 154 1,384 27,451 (76,147) 14,307 214,999 |
Other finuncial ussels 13,569 40 (4,030 - : - 9,979 (4,030)
311,256 {2,862) (&,B08) 27,451 (76,160} 12,607 265,484 (7.972)
Gams or losses (realised and unrealised) for the period are presented in the consolidaled mcome stetement a3 follows:
2011
Fair value
Realized gaing and
gains losses Total
5000 §'000 000
Totul gams or losses included in the consolidated income staterment for the period 1,232 {8, 040) (6, BOR)
Total goms or losses meluded in the consolidated income statement for the period for
ussets held at the end of the year (] (8.040) (7.970
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42, Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following tahle shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Tatal fair

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value

3l December 2000 S0 $000 000 000
Finaneinl nssels at fair valoe through profit or loss

Equity securitics 1,163,433 igla 49,467 1,216,714

Debt securities 3,718,806 831,011 247820 4,817,637

Other financinl nssets 28,603 4 851 13,569 47423

4.5910,542 B50.6T6 311,256 6,081,774

Reconciliation of movements in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The follawing table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing recorded amount of Level 3 financial assets and labilities which are recorded at fair

value
Total gaing
or lusses for
the perind
included in
income
Total statement for
Al Exchange painfiloss) Al mssels held
1 January rate in income Transfers to 31 December at 31 Dec
2010 adjustment stnlement Purchasecs Salez Levell &2 2010 2010
57000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 £1000 S'000
Financial sssets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity securities 50,240 (3,771) 1,778 1223 - = 49,467 1,774
Drebt secunities 264,731 (15,767} 6,883 112,665 (50,800 (69,892) 247,820 7,983
(Other financial assets 13 946 (18 41 - - - 13,969 4]
328917 (19.556) 8,699 113,888 (30,800) {69.452) 311,256 9,803
Gaing or losses (realized and unrenlized) for the pericd are presented In the consalidated income stntement s follows:
2000
Fuir value
HRealized galins and
gainsg losses Tutal
5'000 £'0na 000
Total gains or losses included in the consolidated income statement for the period {1,123} §,822 8,699
Total gaing or losses included in the consolidated meome stetement for the period for
assets held at the end of the year (147) 9,950 9,803

The Group does not regard thar any reasonable change in the veluation assumptions of Level 3 financial instruments will have any significant impact on
the financial satements.
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43. Segment information

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are a5 fallows:

Year ended 31 December 2011
Inzsurance activities

Insurance premium income

Insurance premium ceded (o reinsurers
Commission income

Change in "Value of inforce life insurence policics™
Met underwriting revenue

Policy scquisition expenscy
el insurance benefits and ¢laims

Underwriting cxpenscs

Met result [rem underwriting activities
Investing activities

Investment income

Met realized gains/{lozses) on financial instruments

Met fair value gains/(losses) on financial instruments
Fee income

Chhier incoime(loss)
Invesiment contrect benefits

Met income/(loss) from investing activities
Met income/{loss) Tram all activities

Crperating expenses
Finance charges

Operating profit /{loss)

Share of (loss)profit of mssociated companics
Profit{los) before taxation

Taxation

Profit/{loss) after taxation

Amount attributable to participating policyholders

Frofit/{loss) from continuing operations

Life, health

Property

and pension  and casualty

Assel

Other Consolidation

business business management  companies  ndjustments Group
57000 5000 A"000 5000 o0 000
2269367 1,663,239 2 - - 3952606
(118,991) (948,735) - - - (1,067,746)
13,653 126,518 - = 140,171
2. 184,029 841,002 - - - 3,025,031
—_2r = = - = 70,272
2,254,301 841,002 e - - 3,095 303
(315,043) (198,641) = = (513,684)
(1,933,057)  (288.354) o = - 2221411
(2.228.1000  (486,995) > - - (2735095
6,201 354,007 Z = = 360,208
697,553 106,804 20237 771619 (824,168} £32.045
5 850 73279 3,929 {10,166) 10,980 83472
109,251 (2.464) (39.485) {40, 40%) 56,643 83,536
26,398 2,043 19,891 130,816 {134 684) 44,464
58,798 2.750 £83 (4.845) 422 92.008
{79,997 - = - - (79.997)
817.853 182412 65,455 R47.015 (856,807) 1.055.928
824,054 §36419 65455 B47.015 (B56.807T) 1.416,136
(428.924) (199.755) (34,921 (243,274} 183,670 (729,204)
(5.323) (19.346) (3,041) _ (136,773) $4439 (110,044)
J89.807 317318 27493 460,968 (618,698) 576,888
[16273) (16 544) - 4,259 3,553 {25 (W05}
373,534 300,774 27493 465,227 (615,145) 551,883
(41,729 (43,231} (4.500) 2312 - (87,148)
331,805 257513 22,993 467,539 (615,145) 464,735
{8.716) = = = - (8,716)
323, 089 257 543 22 493 467 539 (615,145) 456,019

L]
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43, Segment information (continued)

The segmient results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are o follows:

Year ended 31 December 2010
Insurance activitics

Insurance premium income

Insurance premium ceded o reinsirers
Commission income

Chunge in *Volue of inforce [ife inguranes policies”
Met underwriting revenue

Policy ncquisition expenses
Met insurance benefits and clnims

Underwriting expenses

Net result from underwriting activiries

Investing activities

Investment income

Met realised gains/(losses) on financial instruments
Met fair value gains/{losses) on financial instruments
Fes income

Chher income/{loss)
Invesiment contract benefits

Net income/{loss) from investing activities
Met income/{loss) from all sctivitics

Cperating expenses
Finance charges

Operating profit /{loss)

Share of (loss)/profit of associated companies
Frofit/{loss) before taxation

Taxation

Profiti{loss) after taxation

Amaunt attributable to participating policyholders

Profit/(lass) from continuing operntions

Life, health Property

and pension  and casualty Assel Other Consaolidation
business business management companies adjostmenis Group
L1000 L1000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 5000
2246949 1,626,264 - - - 3,873,213
(104,402) (592,327) = - - (696,729)
14,086 116,365 - - - 130,451
2,156,633 | 150,302 - - - 3,306,935
75,808 - - = - 75,808
3232441 1,150,302 = = = 3,382,743
(295,183) (253,386) - - - (548,565
_(1885,133) _ (687.764) - - - _(2.572897)
_(2,180318) _ (941,150) = = - _ (3,121,486
2125 209,152 - - - 261277
683,135 112,606 108,124 338,760 (368.330) B71,295
23,067 92 (134, 609y 356,453 - 245,003
97477 (4,744) 56,528 {32.467) 1,959 98,753
13,306 2,834 23,318 84,606 (BB 414} 35648
30,710 5429 (2,208) (37,1309 (5.108) (8.307)
(83,725) - - = = (83,725)
763,970 16,217 48,153 690,222 (459,895 1,158,667
816,095 325369 48,153 690,222 (459 895} 1,419,944
{421,649 (191,296) (51,704) (1&0.4348) 87,053 (728,03%)
{1135} (1&,117) (4.478) (108,167 44,043 182,854}
393,311 117,956 (B.029) 424 619 (318,799 609,058
31 14367 - 8,328 - 23,024
393 642 132,323 (8,029) 432947 (3118,799) 632 084
(76,133) (35,807) (2B,325) 3,467 - (136, 798)
317,509 96,516 (36,354) 436,414 (318,799} 495,286
(14,359) = = - - (14.359)
__ 303,150 96,516 {36,354} 436,414 (318,79%) 480,927
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43, Segment informution (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities and capital expenditure are us follows:

Year ended 31 December 2011

Aggets

Intangible assets

Investment in associated companies

Financial assets

Financial assets of mutue! fund unit holders

Louns nnd receivables

Lands for development and sale

Reinsurance assets

Segreguted fund assets of life insurance palicyholders
Value of inforee life insurance policies

Deferred acquisition costy

Cash and cush equivalents of mutual fund unit holders
Other assets

Total aszels

Linbilitics
Insurunce habilitics

Segregated fund liabilities of life insurnnce policyholders
Onther liabilities

Total liahilities

Year ended 31 December 2010

Intangible assets

Investment in associeted companics

Financial assciz

Financial assets of mutual fund unst holders

Loans and receivables

Lunds for development and sale

Reingurance assats

Seprepated fund essets of life insurance policyholders
Vulue of inforce life insurance policies

Deferred acquisition costs

Cash and cash equivalents of mutual fund unit holders
Other assels

Total assers

Liabilitics

Insurance liakilities

Segregated fund linbilities of life insurance policyholders
Other linbilities

Total liabilitics

Life, health Property

and pension  and casualty Asser Other Consolidation
business business manpgement companics  adiustments Groun
000 S0 000 5000 S000 000
138,147 = - - 116,131 254278
132,095 54,360 - 475 15,080 202,010
5,767,533 1,537,208 90,095 20515 (158,308} 11,257,042
60,097 - 1,236,339 - (131,433) 1,164,983
1,213,025 185,882 24 501 99 665 (15,321) 1,510,752
- - - 397,048 - 301,048
73319 606,954 - - - 680,273
499,502 - - - - 489 502
738,338 - - - 3.705 742,043
1,816 70,841 = - - 72657
244, 791 8,693 161,055 - (253 489) 161,080
1,871,423 1,682,395 71,064 907,438 34,658 4,566,978
14,740,086 4,149.423 1,583,054 1,419,141 (380087 21502617
9,859,340 1,766,248 - - (154731 11,610,115
499,502 - - - - 499,302
2,064,838 | 279,022 1,124,730 1,510,300 (80, 161) 6,198,729
12,423,680 3,045,270 1,134,730 1,810.300 (93,634) 18,308,346
138,097 - - - 115387 253 434
144,467 113.675 - 475 18,230 276,847
§.952.21% 2227 859 106,303 61,404 (164.446) 11,183,338
73,128 = 1,296,213 - (124, 434) 1,244,907
1,284,915 TE4,048 29292 69,286 (19.414) 2,148,127
- o - 305382 - 303,382
72,080 689,534 - - - 761,614
459,937 - - - - 459,937
673,474 - - - - 673474
931 368,692 - - - 169,623
188,994 63,354 150,718 - (252,549) 150,517
1,772,584 611,913 32,794 743,012 240 3,160,545
13,760,825 _ 4.859.075 1615322  1,179.559 (426 986) 20,087,795
2,099 135 3,366,778 - = (12,3517 12453763
459,937 = - - . 459,937
1,963,085 286211 1,113,123 1,597.460  (16,108) 4,943,771
11,522.358  3.652.9489 1,113,123 1,597 460 (28.459) 17357471

T
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44. Contingent labilities

Lepal

Group companies are defendants in various legal actions. In the apinion of the dircctors, sfier tuking approprite legal advice, the outcome of such actions
will not give rise 10 any significant loss.

Purchase
As ot 31 December 2008, one of lhe Group's subsidiaries entered into & preliminary agreement e purchase land. The agreement allows the company 40

months to complete the purchase. Should the company decide not to complete the purchase, the impuct of the financial loss (o the Group will be
§2,355,082:

45. Commitmenis
Capital commitments

As at the year end, & development coniract and a Inan agreement have been entered into in respect of & property projeet. The commitments not provided for
in these financial statements are as follows:;

011 010

5000 5'oon

Investment properiics - 14,074

Operating lease commitments — where 8 Group company is the lestes

The future aggregale minimum lease pryments under operating lenves are 25 follows:

Mot later than one year 24,159 22,637

Later than one year and no later than five years 73,898 25,487

98087 108,124

Rental expense under these lesses gmounted to $22.867,000 for the yeor ended 31 December 20110 (2010; $20,244,000)
46, Related party dizsclosures

The financial statements include the financial statements of GHL and its® subsidiaries and associated companies listed in the fallowing tahle

Percentage

Nuame Country of Incorporation of interest held

Guardian General Insurance Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobagn 100.0
Guardian Life of the Caribbean Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobago 100.0
Fatum Holding NV Metherlands Antilles 100.0
Guardian Life Limited Jamaica 100.0
CGuardian Assel Management Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobago 100.0
Bancassorance Carfbbean Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobago 100.0
Lagvulose Inc. Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobago 9.2
Guardian Re (SAC) Limited Hermuda 100.0
West Indies Alliance Insurance Limited Jumuica 100.0
Appleclaim Investment Holdings Limited United Kingdom 2
Roval Star Assuruance (Behamas) Limited Dahamas 25.0
Ocho Rios Beach Recorts Limited Jumuica 230
RGM Limited Repuhlic of Trinidad & Tobapo 333
Servus Limited Republic of Trinidad & Tobago 50.0

A number of rangactions are entered into with related partics in the nommal course of business. These transections are curried oul on commerviel terms
and conditions at market rates.
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46. Related party disclosures (cantinued)

The follewing trunsoctions were curried outl with reluted porties:

011 010
SO0 000
{0) Sales of Insurance contracts end other services:
= Key menagement personnel 2283 1,074
(k) Interest income from:
= Key associales 11,054 13,363
{c) Financiel essets of;
= Koy nisocintes 233212 234 025
(d} Key management personnel compensation:
- Salaries and other short-term employee benefils T2302 64,502
- Termination benefits 77 1,427
- Post-cmployment benefits LTk m
= (Orher long-term benefits = s
- Shore-bused payments 9,507 2,783
(=) Yeor end balances arising from =ales [ purchages of
products and services:
- Key management personnel - 3,356
(1) Loans to related parties:
Loans fo key managemeni of the Group:
Balance at beginning of year 42,704 43,982
Drifference on retranslation of opening bitlance 11 47
Loans advanced during the year 5482 4,241
Loan repayments received [7.29T) (3,632}
Interest charped 1,868 2,146
Interest received i1.868) (2.080)
40,900 42,704
Loans to key assovioles;:
Balance at beginning of year 5,175 1,657
Loans advanced during the year 4 688 1518
9,863 5,175

There was no provision for doubtful debis al the reporting date and no bad debt expense in the vear (2010 Nil)

47. Aszets under management

Assets under munagement, which are not beneficially owned hy the Group, but which are managed by them on beholf of investors are listed below:

i 2010
Carrying amount
5000 5000
Amounts not Included in the consolidated statement of fnancinl position
Cash and short-term Investmenis 511.907 323,851
Investments 1,443,642 1,158,460
Interest and other recsivahles 108,812 £4 905

2,065,361 1,547 216
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4%, Pledged asscty

The Group hed deposited certain aysels with the regulatory suthoritics in the countries in which it is authorized to conduct business as security for its

polwyholders, The type and volues of these assets are in accordance with the legal requirements of the countries concemed, The carrying value of pledped
iszels is

2011 2010
5000 000
Statutory 6,347,550 5,730,075

i



